
I. Call to Order & Roll Call
II. Chairman's Remarks

III. Message from the Executive Director (with attachments; Tab A)
IV. Senior Staff Reports
V. Committee Reports

VI. Project Reports
VII. Other Business

VIII. Adjournment

I. Call to Order & Roll Call
II. Chairman's Remarks

III. Acceptance of Financial Statements and Minutes
IV. Senior Staff Reports
V. Project Approvals

VI. Other Business
VII. Adjournment

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, January 18, 2011
Chicago, Illinois

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
8:30 a.m.

Two Prudential Plaza - IFA Chicago Office
180 N. Stetson Ave., Suite 2555

Chicago, Illinois

AGENDA

BOARD MEETING
11:30 a.m.

Fairmont Chicago Millennium Park
200 North Columbus Drive

Chicago, Illinois



Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs FM

A) Greg D. & Krystal J. Goebel Montrose (Jasper County) $114,000 0 0 JS/LK

B) Thad & Lindsay Goebel Montrose (Jasper County) $98,000 0 0 JS/LK

C) Travis M. Maedge Highland (Madison County) $171,928 0 0 JS/LK

D) Travis Wesley Rich Robinson (Crawford County) $146,667 0 0 JS/LK

E) Paul David Thompson Edwards (Warren County) $139,500 0 0 JS/LK

F) Teresa Lois Thompson Little York (Warren County) $139,500 0 0 JS/LK

G) Kevin W. & Lindsay K. Cox Illinois City (Mercer County) $133,500 0 0 JS/LK

$943,095 0 0

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs FM

2 CHF-Normal, L.L.C. Normal $65,000,000 5 150 RF

3 CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. DeKalb $135,000,000 5 150 RF

$200,000,000 10 300

$200,943,095 10 300

Tab FM

4 JS

5 BC

6 BC
Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to work with various agencies and trade groups to provide comments to Securities Exchange 
Commission on proposed SEC Rules.

TOTAL HIGHER ED/CULTURAL/NON-HEALTHCARE 501(c)(3) PROJECTS

AGRICULTURE

Beginning Farmer Bonds                                                                                                                                                                                                               
Final (One-Time Consideration)

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Final                                                         

TOTAL AGRICULTURE PROJECTS

1

Ratifying certain action taken to qualify Series 2007A Bonds (McKinley Foundation Project) as "Bank Qualified Bonds"

Projects

Amendatory Resolution/Resolutions/Updates

HIGHER EDUCATION, CULTURAL, AND OTHER NON-HEALTHCARE 501(c)(3)'s

Pere Marquette Associates, L.P. - Extension of Loan Term

RESOLUTIONS/UPDATES

GRAND TOTAL



 
 

January 18, 2011    
 
TO: William A. Brandt, Jr., Chairman  Michael W. Goetz, Vice Chairman 
 Dr. William Barclay    Edward H. Leonard, Sr.  
 Gila J. Bronner     Joseph McInerney 
 Ronald E. DeNard    Terrence M. O'Brien 
 John E. Durburg    Heather D. Parish 
 James J. Fuentes    Roger E. Poole 
 Norman M. Gold    Bradley A. Zeller 
 Dr. Roger D. Herrin  
 
RE: Message from the Executive Director              
 

Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
As we begin calendar year 2011, we look forward to continuing to spur economic development 

throughout Illinois, working with our many partners in local, state and federal government as well as in the 
private sector.   

 
We take this opportunity to congratulate Governor Pat Quinn as well as the other Illinois 

constitutional officers, Lieutenant Governor Sheila Simon, Attorney General Lisa Madigan, Secretary of 
State Jesse White, Comptroller Judy Barr Topinka and Treasurer Dan Rutherford on their inaugurations.   

 
I also thank both Governor Quinn for nominating me and all of you, the Members of the Illinois 

Finance Authority (“IFA”), for selecting me to serve a second term as IFA Executive Director.  I appreciate 
the confidence that you have placed in me and look forward to working with all of you to retain and create 
jobs by facilitating access to lower-cost capital.  I am particularly proud of how the IFA has worked with 
Governor Quinn to successfully implement key provisions of his 2009 Jobs Plan over the past twelve 
months.  

 
We also congratulate the members of the new 97th General Assembly as well as their leaders, 

Senate President John J. Cullerton and House Speaker Michael J. Madigan as well as Senate Minority 
Leader Christine Radogno and House Minority Leader Tom Cross.  The IFA had a very productive working 
relationship with the Illinois General Assembly during the 96th General Assembly and looks forward to 
continuing this relationship with the current legislature.   

 
Finally, we congratulate U.S. Senator Mark Kirk on joining senior U.S. Senator Dick Durbin and 

the new and returning members of Illinois federal delegation in Congress.  The IFA’s major role is as 
conduit issuer of federally tax-exempt debt.  Accordingly, IFA’s ability to fulfill its mission to retain and 
create jobs is deeply intertwined with the policies established in Washington DC. 

 
Fiscal Year 2011 Plan:   the half-way point   
 
To date, we have been successful in our plan to focus on the IFA’s core revenue, organizational and 

reputational strength as our state’s conduit issuer of federally tax-exempt debt.  Consistent with the goals 
set out in July of 2010, the IFA has the following accomplishments:  

 
 The Healthcare Sector, both the financing of hospitals and of continuing care retirement 

communities (“CCRC”), remained essential to the mission and revenue pictures of the 
IFA.  Hospital financing accounted for 33.9% and CCRC accounted for 31% of bond 
principal issued by the IFA since the start of Fiscal Year 2011 on July 1, 2010.  

 

180 North Stetson Ave. 

Suite 2555 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 



  

 2

 In the Business, Industry, Higher Education and General 501 (c) (3) Sector, the IFA 
successfully used a variety of federal financing tools to assist a diverse portfolio of 
borrowers, including: 

 
o Peoples Gas through the first two gas supply projects closed in Illinois in years; 
o Closed three industrial revenue bonds since July 1, 2010, up from zero in the prior 

Fiscal Year;  
o Centerpoint through the first Federal Freight Transfer project closed in Illinois; 
o KONE through the first Midwest Disaster Area project closed in Illinois; 
o East-West University on its first conduit borrowing;  
o Navistar’s corporate headquarters as well as storage, distribution, manufacturing, 

energy and hotel projects through the eight pooled Recovery Zone Facility 
projects (Public Act 96-1020); and  

o Closed 17 projects between December 16 and December 30, 2010, primarily due 
to the expiration of federal financing tools, including the Recovery Zone (“RZ”) 
program, Bank Qualification (“BQ”), Federal Home Loan Bank Letter of Credit 
(“FHLB LOC”) and the Alternative Minimum Tax Exemption for private activity 
bonds (“AMT exemption”).   

 
 Maintained a strong presence in the Agricultural sector - closing 26 individual Beginning 

Farmer Bonds since July 1, 2010.     
    
 Strengthened the oversight of the participation loan portfolio and reduced the IFA’s 

exposure in this sector. 
 

 Strengthened the oversight of the agricultural loan guarantee portfolio and increased the 
reserves allocated against this portfolio.  Public Act 96-897. In particular, the retroactive 
resumption of the federal biodiesel blenders’ tax credit for 2010 and 2011 and a recent 
federal court decision in favor of the Renewable Fuels Standard have reduced the risk that 
certain State-back loan guarantees will be called upon.   

 
 Completed a valuation of the IFA venture capital portfolio and embarked on a course of 

action to manage this in the future.  Of note, on January 4, 2011, IFA closed on the sale of 
one venture capital investment, SmartSignal.   

 
 The acceptance of the 2009 IFA compliance examination and financial audit, conducted 

on behalf of the Illinois Office of the Auditor General by the Legislative Audit 
Commission on its November 2010 consent calendar.  

 
Fiscal Year 2011 Challenges 
 
It is anticipated that the challenging economic environment will continue to impact borrowers’ 

decisions as to proceed with federally tax-exempt bond financings.  The anticipated upward movement of 
interest rates will also impact these decisions by borrowers.    

 
On the federal level, the expiration of financing tools such as the RZ program, BQ, FHLB LOC and 

the AMT exemption will reduce the universe of projects eligible for federally tax-exempt conduit financing.  
Also, the policy of tax-exempt financing has recently been questioned at the federal level.  See, e.g. The 
National Commission on Fiscal Responsibility and Reform:  The Moment of Truth, p. 31.   Finally, recent 
proposed changes by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) may increase the cost and obstacles 
to the use of tax-exempt conduit financing to retain and create jobs by diverse corporate and not-for-profit 
borrowers.   These proposed changes by the SEC will be discussed more fully in today’s meeting.      

 



  

 3

The IFA hopes to expand the use of two federal financing tools that remain in effect, Midwest 
Disaster Area Bonds and Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds, over the coming months.   Finally, the IFA 
will continue to devote resources to fully implementing a cost-effective energy efficiency financing 
program as well as a Medicaid receivables financing program.   
 

Conclusion  
 
I look forward to working with all of you and our partners at the federal and state levels to retain 

and create jobs for all of Illinois.   
   

Respectfully,  
 
 

___________________ 
Christopher B. Meister 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
 Attachment 1 – General Fund, Financial Results, Consolidated Balance Sheet and Audit Tracking 
Schedule 
 
 Attachment 2 – Schedule of Debt; FY’11 Closed Projects 
 
 Attachment 3 – Month by Month Summary of Conduit Bond Issuances 



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 

December 31,  2010

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2010 2010 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 Expended

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 78,741              149,271                  (70,530)                  -47.25% 542,566               568,727                  (26,161)                  -4.60% 1,146,121         47.34%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 4,212                 1,709                      2,503                      146.46% 30,943                 10,254                    20,689                   201.76% 20,500              150.94%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 1,044,512         286,682                  757,830                 264.34% 3,639,287            1,829,193               1,810,094              98.96% 3,569,338         101.96%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 54,585              49,758                    4,827                      9.70% 314,975               286,461                  28,513                   9.95% 582,892            54.04%
   OTHER INCOME 15,507              6,878                      8,629                      125.45% 118,609               41,268                    77,341                   187.41% 82,537              100.00%

 TOTAL REVENUE 1,197,556         494,298                  703,258                 142.27% 4,646,381            2,735,903               1,910,477              69.83% 5,401,388         86.02%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 52,646              187,266                  (134,620)                -71.89% 882,887               1,112,840               (229,953)                -20.66% 2,354,798         37.49%
    BENEFITS 10,275              23,036                    (12,761)                  -55.40% 108,141               137,168                  (29,027)                  -21.16% 286,314            37.77%
    TEMPORARY HELP 340                    417                         (77)                         -18.56% 1,307                   2,502                      (1,195)                    -47.77% 5,000                 26.14%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT -                         1,667                      (1,667)                    -100.00% 3,113                   10,000                    (6,887)                    -68.87% 20,000              15.57%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 3,253                 6,250                      (2,997)                    -47.95% 22,699                 37,500                    (14,801)                  -39.47% 75,000              30.27%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 66,513              218,636                  (152,123)                -69.58% 1,018,146            1,300,010               (281,864)                -21.68% 2,741,112         37.14%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 21,182              20,833                    348                         1.67% 125,925               125,000                  925                         0.74% 250,000            50.37%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 10,092              10,875                    (783)                       -7.20% 60,154                 65,250                    (5,096)                    -7.81% 130,500            46.09%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 26,418              26,326                    92                           0.35% 165,796               157,956                  7,840                      4.96% 315,904            52.48%
    MARKETING GENERAL 491                    2,083                      (1,592)                    -76.43% 12,739                 12,498                    241                         1.92% 25,000              50.95%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY (52,416)             31,250                    (83,666)                  -267.73% 66,334                 187,500                  (121,166)                -64.62% 375,000            17.69%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,035                 1,667                      (632)                       -37.91% 2,564                   10,002                    (7,438)                    -74.37% 20,000              12.82%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (27,264)             15,375                    (42,639)                  -277.33% 56,679                 92,250                    (35,571)                  -38.56% 184,500            30.72%
    DATA PROCESSING 2,606                 4,583                      (1,977)                    -43.13% 17,674                 27,498                    (9,824)                    -35.73% 55,000              32.13%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (17,856)             112,992                  (130,848)                -115.80% 507,864               677,954                  (170,090)                -25.09% 1,355,904         37.46%

Page 1



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 

December 31,  2010

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2010 2010 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 Expended

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 11,085              22,840                    (11,755)                  -51.46% 122,728               137,040                  (14,312)                  -10.44% 274,076            44.78%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 1,148                 1,700                      (552)                       -32.49% 10,655                 10,200                    455                         4.46% 20,400              52.23%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 1,853                 5,050                      (3,197)                    -63.30% 19,843                 30,300                    (10,457)                  -34.51% 60,600              32.74%
    UTILITIES 839                    917                         (78)                         -8.47% 5,698                   5,502                      196                         3.57% 11,000              51.80%
    DEPRECIATION 2,439                 4,109                      (1,670)                    -40.64% 14,972                 24,654                    (9,682)                    -39.27% 49,305              30.37%
     INSURANCE 1,929                 1,900                      29                           1.54% 11,575                 11,400                    175                         1.54% 22,800              50.77%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 19,294              36,516                    (17,222)                  -47.16% 185,471               219,096                  (33,625)                  -15.35% 438,181            42.33%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,322                 4,458                      (136)                       -3.05% 18,480                 26,748                    (8,268)                    -30.91% 53,500              34.54%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 7,792                 3,000                      4,792                      159.74% 20,152                 18,000                    2,152                      11.95% 36,000              55.98%
    PRINTING 3,163                 542                         2,621                      483.91% 6,120                   3,250                      2,870                      88.30% 6,500                 94.15%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 1,985                 1,250                      735                         58.83% 8,648                   7,500                      1,148                      15.31% 15,000              57.65%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,334                 2,708                      (374)                       -13.81% 20,530                 16,248                    4,282                      26.35% 32,500              63.17%
    PUBLICATIONS 150                    250                         (100)                       -40.12% 1,079                   1,500                      (421)                       -28.05% 3,000                 35.98%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619              15,833                    (214)                       -1.35% 100,223               94,998                    5,225                      5.50% 190,000            52.75%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 35,366              28,041                    7,325                      26.12% 175,233               168,244                  6,989                      4.15% 336,500            52.08%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000              25,000                    -                              0.00% 475,568               150,000                  325,568                 217.05% 300,000            158.52%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL OTHER -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 128,317            421,185                  (292,867)                -69.53% 2,362,281            2,515,304               (153,023)                -6.08% 5,171,697         45.68%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS 1,069,239         73,114                    996,125                 1362.43% 2,284,099            220,599                  2,063,500              935.41% 229,691            994.42%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TRANSFER -                         -                              -                              0.00% 18,648                 -                              18,648                   0.00% -                         -

   REVENUE GRANT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                   

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) 1,069,239         73,114                    996,125                 1362.43% 2,302,747            220,599                  2,082,148              943.86% 229,691            1002.54%

Page 2



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Actual

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 

December 31, 2010

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2010 2009 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 78,741              96,665                    (17,924)                  -18.54% 542,566               593,906                  (51,340)                  -8.64%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 4,212                 3,686                      526                         14.27% 30,943                 23,607                    7,335                      31.07%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 1,044,512         1,201,795               (157,284)                -13.09% 3,639,287            3,234,113               405,175                 12.53%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 54,585              48,537                    6,048                      12.46% 314,975               500,374                  (185,400)                -37.05%
   OTHER INCOME 15,507              7,941                      7,566                      95.27% 118,609               112,732                  5,877                      5.21%

 TOTAL REVENUE 1,197,556         1,358,624               (161,068)                -11.86% 4,646,381            4,464,733               181,648                 4.07%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 52,646              234,749                  (182,103)                -77.57% 882,887               1,402,557               (519,670)                -37.05%
    BENEFITS 10,275              27,168                    (16,893)                  -62.18% 108,141               137,276                  (29,135)                  -21.22%
    TEMPORARY HELP 340                    3,275                      (2,936)                    -89.63% 1,307                   17,108                    (15,802)                  -92.36%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT -                         -                              -                              0.00% 3,113                   11,035                    (7,922)                    -71.79%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 3,253                 6,770                      (3,517)                    -51.95% 22,699                 28,563                    (5,864)                    -20.53%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 66,513              271,962                  (205,449)                -75.54% 1,018,146            1,596,539               (578,392)                -36.23%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 21,182              15,833                    5,349                      33.78% 125,925               95,462                    30,463                   31.91%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 10,092              8,916                      1,176                      13.19% 60,154                 56,609                    3,545                      6.26%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 26,418              22,805                    3,613                      15.84% 165,796               140,677                  25,119                   17.86%
    MARKETING GENERAL 491                    70                           421                         605.90% 12,739                 2,997                      9,741                      325.02%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY (52,416)             18,333                    (70,749)                  -385.91% 66,334                 109,998                  (43,664)                  -39.70%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,035                 -                              1,035                      0.00% 2,564                   3,718                      (1,155)                    -31.05%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (27,264)             22,525                    (49,789)                  0.00% 56,679                 42,425                    14,254                   0.00%
    DATA PROCESSING 2,606                 6,397                      (3,790)                    -59.25% 17,674                 26,676                    (9,002)                    -33.75%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (17,856)             94,878                    (112,733)                -118.82% 507,864               478,562                  29,301                   6.12%

Page 3



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Actual

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 

December 31, 2010

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2010 2009 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 11,085              15,028                    (3,942)                    -26.23% 122,728               126,941                  (4,213)                    -3.32%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 1,148                 1,301                      (153)                       -11.76% 10,655                 17,501                    (6,846)                    -39.12%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 1,853                 4,922                      (3,069)                    -62.34% 19,843                 30,075                    (10,232)                  -34.02%
    UTILITIES 839                    859                         (19)                         -2.25% 5,698                   5,752                      (54)                         -0.93%
    DEPRECIATION 2,439                 4,048                      (1,609)                    -39.75% 14,972                 29,787                    (14,815)                  -49.74%
     INSURANCE 1,929                 1,951                      (22)                         -1.13% 11,575                 11,617                    (42)                         -0.36%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 19,294              28,109                    (8,814)                    -31.36% 185,471               221,674                  (36,203)                  -16.33%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,322                 3,839                      483                         12.57% 18,480                 20,297                    (1,817)                    -8.95%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 7,792                 2,852                      4,940                      173.23% 20,152                 17,071                    3,081                      18.05%
    PRINTING 3,163                 1,098                      2,065                      188.09% 6,120                   3,345                      2,775                      82.96%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 1,985                 2,547                      (562)                       -22.06% 8,648                   8,524                      124                         1.46%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,334                 12,073                    (9,739)                    -80.67% 20,530                 20,872                    (342)                       -1.64%
    PUBLICATIONS 150                    293                         (144)                       -48.96% 1,079                   1,013                      66                           6.50%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619              15,619                    -                              0.00% 100,223               93,773                    6,450                      6.88%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                         -                              -                              - -                           -                              -                              -

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 35,366              38,322                    (2,957)                    -7.72% 175,233               164,895                  10,338                   6.27%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000              25,000                    -                              0.00% 475,568               150,000                  325,568                 217.05%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00%

 TOTAL OTHER -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 128,317            458,271                  (329,954)                -72.00% 2,362,281            2,611,670               (249,389)                -9.55%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS 1,069,239         900,353                  168,886                 18.76% 2,284,099            1,853,063               431,036                 23.26%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00%

 TRANSFER -                         7,500                      (7,500)                    0.00% 18,648                 48,762                    (30,114)                  -61.76%

   REVENUE GRANT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00%

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) 1,069,239         907,853                  161,386                 17.78% 2,302,747            1,901,825               400,922                 21.08%

Page 4



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund

Unaudited
Balance Sheet

for the Six Months Ending December 31, 2010

Actual
December

2010

ASSETS
  CASH & INVESTMENTS, UNRESTRICTED 26,660,289$           
  RECEIVABLES, NET 66,454                   
  LOAN RECEIVABLE, NET 16,266,099             
  OTHER RECEIVABLES 143,996                  
  PREPAID EXPENSES 122,414                  

  TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 43,259,252             

FIXED ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 59,667                   

DEFERRED ISSUANCE COSTS 326,995                  

OTHER ASSETS
  CASH, INVESTMENTS & RESERVES 1,581,468               
  OTHER (20,778)                  

  TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1,560,690               

TOTAL ASSETS 45,206,604$          

LIABILITIES
  CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,585,152$             
  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 476,298                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,061,450               

EQUITY
  CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 4,111,479               
  RETAINED EARNINGS 24,759,630             
  NET INCOME / (LOSS) 2,302,747               
  RESERVED/RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 1,732,164               
  UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 10,239,134             

TOTAL EQUITY 43,145,154             

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 45,206,604$          



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated

Unaudited
Balance Sheet

for the Six Months Ending December 31,  2010

Actual Actual
December December

2009 2010

ASSETS
  CASH & INVESTMENTS, UNRESTRICTED 31,904,704$           40,189,639$           
  RECEIVABLES, NET 384,012                  66,454                    
  LOAN RECEIVABLE, NET 45,593,195             37,941,828             
  NOTES RECEIVABLE 49,261,074             45,134,874             
  OTHER RECEIVABLES 1,235,972               1,412,994               
  PREPAID EXPENSES 130,009                  122,414                  

  TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 128,508,966           124,868,203           

FIXED ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 68,897                    59,667                    

DEFERRED ISSUANCE COSTS 526,475                  445,439                  

OTHER ASSETS
  CASH, INVESTMENTS & RESERVES 40,410,751             38,271,417             
  VENTURE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 5,377,739               2,512,917               
  OTHER 3,000,000               3,000,000               

  TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 48,788,490             43,784,334             

TOTAL ASSETS 177,892,828$        169,157,643$        

LIABILITIES
  CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,103,666               1,719,381               
  BONDS PABYABLE 59,470,000             54,345,000             
  OTHER LIABILITIES 2,191,557               2,025,745               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 62,765,223             58,090,126             

EQUITY
  CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 35,608,692             35,608,692             
  RETAINED EARNINGS 27,173,957             26,144,175             
  NET INCOME / (LOSS) 2,225,592               (1,211,706)              
  RESERVED/RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 37,471,193             37,878,185             
  UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 12,648,171             12,648,171             

TOTAL EQUITY 115,127,605           111,067,517           

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 177,892,828$        169,157,643$        



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 

December 31, 2010

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2010 2010 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2010 Expended

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 254,501            333,166                  (78,665)                  -23.61% 1,742,397         1,647,721               94,676                   5.75% 3,291,666         52.93%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 48,248              60,707                    (12,459)                  -20.52% 393,020            364,242                  28,778                   7.90% 728,492            53.95%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 1,044,512         286,682                  757,830                 264.34% 3,639,287         1,829,193               1,810,094              98.96% 3,569,338         101.96%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 54,585              49,758                    4,827                      9.70% 314,975            286,461                  28,513                   9.95% 642,892            48.99%
   OTHER INCOME 46,398              11,878                    34,520                   290.62% 249,136            71,268                    177,868                 249.58% 82,537              301.85%

-                                                        -                               -                                - -                                                        -                                -                                -                                -                                - 
 TOTAL REVENUE 1,448,244         742,191                  706,053                 95.13% 6,338,816         4,198,885               2,139,930              50.96% 8,314,925         76.23%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 52,646              187,266                  (134,620)                -71.89% 882,887            1,112,840               (229,953)                -20.66% 2,354,798         37.49%
    BENEFITS 10,275              23,036                    (12,761)                  -55.40% 108,141            137,168                  (29,027)                  -21.16% 286,314            37.77%
    TEMPORARY HELP 340                    417                         (77)                         -18.56% 1,307                 2,502                      (1,195)                    -47.77% 5,000                 26.14%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT -                         1,667                      (1,667)                    -100.00% 3,113                 10,000                    (6,887)                    -68.87% 20,000              15.57%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 3,253                 6,250                      (2,997)                    -47.95% 22,699              37,500                    (14,801)                  -39.47% 75,000              30.27%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 66,513              218,636                  (152,123)                -69.58% 1,018,146         1,300,010               (281,864)                -21.68% 2,741,112         37.14%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 23,265              23,749                    (485)                       -2.04% 138,423            142,496                  (4,073)                    -2.86% 285,000            48.57%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 206,357            207,148                  (791)                       -0.38% 1,896,107         1,242,888               653,219                 52.56% 2,771,070         68.43%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 28,264              28,422                    (158)                       -0.56% 176,871            170,532                  6,339                      3.72% 341,054            51.86%
    MARKETING GENERAL 491                    2,083                      (1,592)                    -76.43% 12,739              12,498                    241                         1.92% 25,000              50.95%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY (52,416)             31,250                    (83,666)                  -267.73% 66,334              187,500                  (121,166)                -64.62% 375,000            17.69%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,035                 1,667                      (632)                       -37.91% 2,564                 10,002                    (7,438)                    -74.37% 20,000              12.82%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (23,931)             18,708                    (42,639)                  -227.92% 76,677              112,248                  (35,571)                  -31.69% 224,500            34.15%
    DATA PROCESSING 2,606                 4,583                      (1,977)                    -43.13% 17,674              27,498                    (9,824)                    -35.73% 55,000              32.13%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 185,671            317,610                  (131,939)                -41.54% 2,387,388         1,905,662               481,726                 25.28% 4,096,624         58.28%

Page 1



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 

December 31, 2010

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2010 2010 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2010 Expended

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 11,085              22,840                    (11,755)                  -51.46% 122,728            137,040                  (14,312)                  -10.44% 274,076            44.78%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 1,148                 1,700                      (552)                       -32.49% 10,655              10,200                    455                         4.46% 20,400              52.23%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 1,853                 5,050                      (3,197)                    -63.30% 19,843              30,300                    (10,457)                  -34.51% 60,600              32.74%
    UTILITIES 839                    917                         (78)                         -8.47% 5,698                 5,502                      196                         3.57% 11,000              51.80%
    DEPRECIATION 2,439                 4,109                      (1,670)                    -40.64% 14,972              24,654                    (9,682)                    -39.27% 49,305              30.37%
     INSURANCE 1,929                 1,900                      29                           1.54% 11,575              11,400                    175                         1.54% 22,800              50.77%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 19,294              36,516                    (17,222)                  -47.16% 185,471            219,096                  (33,625)                  -15.35% 438,181            42.33%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,322                 4,458                      (136)                       -3.05% 18,480              26,748                    (8,268)                    -30.91% 53,500              34.54%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 7,792                 3,000                      4,792                      159.74% 20,152              18,000                    2,152                      11.95% 36,000              55.98%
    PRINTING 3,163                 542                         2,621                      483.91% 6,120                 3,250                      2,870                      88.30% 6,500                 94.15%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 1,985                 1,250                      735                         58.83% 8,648                 7,500                      1,148                      15.31% 15,000              57.65%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,334                 2,708                      (374)                       -13.81% 20,530              16,248                    4,282                      26.35% 32,500              63.17%
    PUBLICATIONS 150                    250                         (100)                       -40.12% 1,079                 1,500                      (421)                       -28.05% 3,000                 35.98%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619              15,833                    (214)                       -1.35% 100,223            94,998                    5,225                      5.50% 190,000            52.75%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 35,366              28,041                    7,325                      26.12% 175,233            168,244                  6,989                      4.15% 336,500            52.08%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000              116,666                  (91,666)                  -78.57% 470,983            699,996                  (229,013)                -32.72% 1,400,000         33.64%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE 550                    550                         -                              0.00% 3,301                 3,300                      1                             0.03% 6,317                 52.26%

 TOTAL OTHER 550                    550                         -                              0.00% 3,301                 3,300                      1                             0.03% 6,317                 52.26%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 332,394            718,019                  (385,624)                -53.71% 4,240,522         4,296,308               (55,786)                  -1.30% 9,018,734         47.02%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS 1,115,850         24,173                    1,091,677              4516.14% 2,098,294         (97,423)                   2,195,717              -2253.81% (703,809)           -298.13%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TRANSFERS TO STATE OF ILLINOIS (3,310,000)        -                              (3,310,000)             0.00% (3,310,000)        -                              (3,310,000)             0.00% -                         0.00%

   REVENUE GRANT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                   

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) (2,194,150)        24,173                    (2,218,323)             -9176.94% (1,211,706)        (97,423)                   (1,114,283)             1143.76% (703,809)           172.16%

Page 2



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated 

Statement of Activities
Comparison

for December 2010 and December 2009

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2010 2009 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 254,501            628,729                  (374,228)                -59.52% 1,742,397         1,751,765      (9,368)                    -0.53%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 48,248              88,863                    (40,615)                  -45.70% 393,020            409,661         (16,641)                  -4.06%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 1,044,512         1,201,795               (157,284)                -13.09% 3,639,287         3,234,113      405,175                  12.53%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 54,585              48,537                    6,048                      12.46% 314,975            500,374         (185,400)                -37.05%
   OTHER INCOME 46,398              33,862                    12,536                    37.02% 249,136            238,277         10,859                    4.56%

-                                                      - 0.00% -                                                      -                    - 
 TOTAL REVENUE 1,448,244         2,001,787               (553,542)                -27.65% 6,338,816         6,134,190      204,625                  3.34%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 52,646              234,749                  (182,103)                -77.57% 882,887            1,402,557      (519,670)                -37.05%
    BENEFITS 10,275              27,168                    (16,893)                  -62.18% 108,141            137,276         (29,135)                  -21.22%
    TEMPORARY HELP 340                   3,275                      (2,936)                    -89.63% 1,307                17,108           (15,802)                  -92.36%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT -                        -                             -                             0.00% 3,113                11,035           (7,922)                    0.00%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 3,253                6,770                      (3,517)                    -51.95% 22,699              28,563           (5,864)                    -20.53%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 66,513              271,962                  (205,449)                -75.54% 1,018,146         1,596,539      (578,392)                -36.23%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 23,265              16,666                    6,599                      39.59% 138,423            100,460         37,963                    37.79%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 206,357            632,879                  (426,522)                -67.39% 1,896,107         1,314,407      581,700                  44.26%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 28,264              24,851                    3,413                      13.73% 176,871            152,954         23,918                    15.64%
    MARKETING GENERAL 491                   70                          421                        0.00% 12,739              2,997             9,741                      0.00%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY (52,416)             18,333                    (70,749)                  -385.91% 66,334              109,998         (43,664)                  -39.70%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,035                -                             1,035                      0.00% 2,564                3,718             (1,155)                    0.00%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (23,931)             25,858                    (49,789)                  0.00% 76,677              62,423           14,254                    22.83%
    DATA PROCESSING 2,606                6,397                      (3,790)                    -59.25% 17,674              26,676           (9,002)                    -33.75%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 185,671            725,053                  (539,382)                -74.39% 2,387,388         1,773,633      613,755                  34.60%

Page 3



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated 

Statement of Activities
Comparison

for December 2010 and December 2009

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
December December Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2010 2009 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 11,085              15,028                    (3,942)                    -26.23% 122,728            126,941         (4,213)                    -3.32%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 1,148                1,301                      (153)                       -11.76% 10,655              17,501           (6,846)                    -39.12%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 1,853                4,922                      (3,069)                    -62.34% 19,843              30,075           (10,232)                  -34.02%
    UTILITIES 839                   859                        (19)                         -2.25% 5,698                5,752             (54)                         -0.93%
    DEPRECIATION 2,439                4,048                      (1,609)                    -39.75% 14,972              29,787           (14,815)                  -49.74%
     INSURANCE 1,929                1,951                      (22)                         -1.13% 11,575              11,617           (42)                         -0.36%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 19,294              28,109                    (8,814)                    -31.36% 185,471            221,674         (36,203)                  -16.33%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,322                3,839                      483                        12.57% 18,480              20,297           (1,817)                    -8.95%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 7,792                2,852                      4,940                      173.23% 20,152              17,071           3,081                      18.05%
    PRINTING 3,163                1,098                      2,065                      188.09% 6,120                3,345             2,775                      82.96%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 1,985                2,547                      (562)                       -22.06% 8,648                8,524             124                        1.46%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,334                12,073                    (9,739)                    -80.67% 20,530              20,872           (342)                       -1.64%
    PUBLICATIONS 150                   293                        (144)                       -48.96% 1,079                1,013             66                          6.50%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619              15,619                    -                             0.00% 100,223            93,773           6,450                      6.88%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                        -                             -                             0.00% -                        -                    -                             0.00%

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 35,366              38,322                    (2,957)                    -7.72% 175,233            164,895         10,338                    6.27%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000              25,000                    -                             0.00% 470,983            148,274         322,709                  217.64%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE 550                   597                        (47)                         -7.87% 3,301                3,584             (283)                       -7.90%

 TOTAL OTHER 550                   597                        (47)                         -7.87% 3,301                3,584             (283)                       -7.90%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 332,394            1,089,043               (756,649)                -69.48% 4,240,522         3,908,599      331,923                  8.49%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS 1,115,850         912,744                  203,107                  22.25% 2,098,294         2,225,592      (127,297)                -5.72%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                        -                             -                             0.00% -                        -                    -                             0.00%

 TRANSFER TO STATE OF ILLINOIS (3,310,000)        -                             (3,310,000)             0.00% (3,310,000)        -                    (3,310,000)             0.00%

   REVENUE GRANT -                        -                             -                             0.00% -                        -                    -                             0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                        -                             -                             -                        -                    -                             0.00%

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) (2,194,150)        912,744                  (3,106,893)             -340.39% (1,211,706)        2,225,592      (3,437,297)             -154.44%

Page 4



Number of Material Findings - 1
Finding

Item Number Description Type Comments
Government Auditing Standards: 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100
09-01 Valuation of Venture 

Capital Investments
Significant 
Deficiency

Auditor Recommendation:  The IFA has not had an independent valuation of its 
venture capital investments since fiscal year 2006.  We recommend the Authority 
obtain an independent valuation of the investment portfolio periodically in order to 
support the amounts recorded and disclosed in the financial statements.  Authority 
Response:  The Authority accepted the auditor's recommendation.  The Authority 
has procured a vendor and the valuation of the venture capital portfolio is underway.

          

Illinois Finance Authority
FY09 Audit Finding:   Material 

Update as of December 31, 2010

Percentage Completed



Item Number Description
10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 95 100

Total Number of 4

FY 09 Immaterial Findings

IM09-01 Failure to Report Revenue Bond Information to the Illinois Office of the Comptroller

IM09-02 Inaccurate Agency Report of State Property (C-15)

IM09-03 Lack of Disaster Contingency Testing to Ensure Recovery of Computer Systems

IM09-04 Weaknesses Regarding the Security and Control of Confidential Information

Illinois Finance Authority
FY09 Audit Finding:  Immaterial 
Update as of December 31, 2010

Percentage Completed



Bonds Issued and Outstanding 

as of December 31, 2010

Bonds Issued Since Inception of Illinois Finance Authority

Principal Amount ($)Market Sector#

Agriculture **  61,109,881 319

Education  3,850,158,100 100

Healthcare *  16,022,288,508 326

Industrial  931,142,853 86

Local Government  378,145,000 27

Multifamily/Senior Housing  175,417,900 19

501(c)(3) Not-for Profits  1,717,098,195 131

Exempt Facilities Bonds  275,700,000 8

Environmental issued 

under 20 ILCS 3515/9

 326,630,000 9

$ 23,737,690,437

A 0.3%
E 16.5%
H 68.6%
I 2.4%
L 1.6%
M 0.8%
N 7.5%
P 1.2%
P-ENV 1.3%

Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued Since Inception

 * Includes CCRC's

** Number of Agriculture bonds has been adjusted to reflect the actual number of Beginner Farmer Bonds issued.

Market Sector

Schedule of Bonds Outstanding by Market Sector

Includes IFA and it's Predecessor Authorities

Principal 

Outstanding

Amount of 

Original Issue

 92,846,613 299,579,587Agriculture

 4,854,763,512 5,433,350,730Education

 14,458,782,219 16,473,242,337Healthcare *

 1,385,633,100 1,588,772,853Industrial

 659,442,146 1,135,309,413Local Government

 305,785,468 742,915,396Multifamily/Senior Housing

 2,357,146,307 2,874,624,996501(c)(3) Not-for Profits

 155,160,000 155,360,000Exempt Facilities Bonds

 673,486,518 770,475,000Environmental issued 

under 20 ILCS 3515/9

$ 29,473,630,311 $ 24,943,045,882

A 0.4%
E 19.5%
H 58.0%
I 5.6%
L 2.6%
M 1.2%
N 9.5%
P 0.6%
P-ENV 2.7%

Total: 100.0%

Principal Outstanding by Market Sector

 * Includes CCRC's

Principal Issued

Current Fiscal Year

Market Sector#

 4,525,669Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 26

 43,900,000Education 3

 1,985,000Financially Distressed Cities 1

 150,000,000Freight Transfer Facilities Bonds 2

 100,000,000Gas Supply 2

 497,820,000Healthcare - Hospital 12

 458,705,000Healthcare - CCRC 16

 17,329,184Industrial Revenue 3

 20,200,000Midwest Disaster Area Bonds 1

 7,700,000501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 2

 211,488,000Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds 8

$ 1,513,652,853 77

A-BFB 0.4%
CCRC 31.0%
DC 0.1%
E-PC 3.1%
FTFRB 10.7%
GS 7.2%
HO 33.9%
IRB 1.2%
MWDAB 1.4%
RZFB 10.9%

Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued - Current Fiscal Year



Bonds Issued between July 01, 2010 and December 31, 2010

Principal Issued

Initial Interest 

RateDate IssuedBond Issue
Bonds 

Refunded

Beginner Farmer Bonds, Series 2011  4,525,669Various-See BelowA-BFB 07/01/2010  0

NorthShore University HealthSystem, Series 2010  136,425,0002.00% to 5.25%HO 07/14/2010  115,800,000

The Clare at Water Tower, Series 2010A&B  87,505,0005.10% to 6.125%CCRC 07/15/2010  87,505,000

Christian Homes, Inc., Series 2010  25,000,0003.40% to 6.125%CCRC 07/29/2010  8,090,000

Bison Gear & Engineering Corporation, Series 2010  9,230,000VRB    0.32%IRB 07/29/2010  0

Institute for Transfusion Medicine, Series 2010  26,500,000VRB    3.60%HO 07/29/2010  0

Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company, Series 2010A  50,000,000VRB    2.125%GS 08/18/2010  0

Annex II, LLC - Rock City Development, Series 2010  4,585,0006.00%RZFB 08/24/2010  0

Greenfields of Geneva, Series 2010A-C  117,600,0007.50% to 8.25%CCRC 08/31/2010  9,185,000

Provena Health, Series 2010C&D  72,000,000VRB    0.29%HO 09/22/2010  0

Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company, Series 2010B  50,000,0002.625%GS 10/05/2010  50,000,000

Fabrication Technologies, Inc., Series 2010  5,140,000DP-VRBIRB 10/15/2010  0

Little Company of Mary Hospital, Series 2010  72,000,0005.25% to 5.50%HO 10/20/2010  0

Beloit Health System, Series 2010  37,895,000VRBHO 10/21/2010  40,325,000

Navistar International Corporation, Series 2010  135,000,0006.50%RZFB 10/26/2010  0

City of East St. Louis, Series 2010  1,985,0003.00%DC 10/26/2010  1,650,000

Swedish Covenant Hospital, Series 2010  20,000,000DP    4.99%HO 11/03/2010  0

University of Chicago Medical Center, Series 2010A&B  92,500,000VRB    0.24%HO 11/09/2010  0

Admiral at the Lake, Series 2010A-E  202,350,0007.25% to 8.00%CCRC 11/19/2010  0

BPJ Investments, LLC - Nueco, Inc., Series 2010  2,803,000DP-VRB    4.00%RZFB 12/16/2010  0

Proctor Hospital, Series 2010  15,500,000DP-VRB    2.59202%HO 12/16/2010  0

The Old Town School of Folk Music, Inc., Series 2010  10,000,000DP-VRB    4.25%E-PC 12/20/2010  0

KONE Centre, Series 2010  20,200,000DP-VRB    2.30%MWDAB 12/21/2010  0

CenterPoint Joliet Terminal Railroad, Series 2010A&B  150,000,000DP-VRB    2.1074%FTFRB 12/21/2010  0

East-West University, Series 2010  30,000,000DP-VRB    2.025%E-PC 12/22/2010  0

Quest Academy, Series 2010  3,200,000DP-VRB    1.987016%501(c)(3) 12/22/2010  0

Rochelle Energy LLC, Series 2010  10,000,000DP    4.53%RZFB 12/22/2010  0

Illinois College, Series 2010  3,900,000DP    4.22%E-PC 12/23/2010  0

Alef Sausage, Series 2010  2,959,184DP    4.25%IRB 12/23/2010  0

Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Center, Series 2010  25,000,000DP-VRB    1.1973%HO 12/27/2010  0

St. Francis High School College Preparatory, Series 2010  4,500,000DP-VRB    2.18%501(c)(3) 12/28/2010  0

JH Naperville Hotel, LLC, Series 2010  30,000,0005.16%RZFB 12/28/2010  0

1200 Internationale Parkway, LLC, Series 2010  3,500,000DP-VRB    3.97%RZFB 12/28/2010  0

Mercy Circle, Series 2010  26,250,000DP-VRB    2.10%CCRC 12/29/2010  0

SMART Hotels/Olympia Chicago, Series 2010  21,500,000DP-VRBRZFB 12/30/2010  0

Mayo Properties, LLC, Series 2010  4,100,000DP-VRB    3.825%RZFB 12/30/2010  0

Total Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2011 

Fixed Rate Bonds as shown

DP-VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Direct Purchase Bond

      VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Variable Rate Bond that does not include the cost of the LOC arrangement.                             

Beginner Farmer Bonds interest rates are shown in section below.

Legend:

$ 1,513,652,853 $ 312,555,000

CountyAcresBorrower Date Funded

Initial 

Interest 

Rate Loan Proceeds

Beginner Farmer Bonds

Stortzum, Brent A. 07/21/2010 4.25%  157,500  38.00 Effingham

Tolley, Daniel Steven 07/23/2010 4.50%  106,900  82.30 Knox

Justison, Keri L. 07/30/2010 4.25%  249,736  106.00 Montgomery

Justison, David M. 07/30/2010 4.25%  249,736  106.00 Montgomery

Will, Richard & Linda 07/30/2010 4.00%  206,712  71.30 Cumberland

Smithenry, Eric J. 07/30/2010 4.25%  135,000  20.00 Jasper

Stinnett, Sean & Cheryl 08/05/2010 4.75%  224,000  52.84 Macoupin

Alt, Lawrence & Loretta 08/12/2010 4.00%  100,000  26.67 Vermilion

Alt, James & Jo Ellen 08/12/2010 4.00%  102,667  26.67 Vermilion

ref:  T:\Bond Reports\Bond Issued Reports\Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book.rpt



Kopplin, Seth A. 08/16/2010 4.00%  184,000  73.62 Effingham

Gittleson, Brock 09/21/2010 4.46%  207,500  50.00 Lee

Mellendorf, Mark 09/21/2010 4.25%  25,200  20.00 Clay

Fritschle, Derek 10/07/2010 4.00%  125,000  78.00 Richland

Stahl, Rodney Lynn 10/25/2010 4.00%  122,500  50.00 Stark

Stahl, Kendall 10/25/2010 4.50%  137,500  50.00 Stark

Rosenthal, Darin T. 10/29/2010 4.00%  250,000  80.00 Montgomery

Stephens, Douglas & Cindy 11/05/2010 3.50%  240,000  60.00 Livingston

Stephens, Derek & Brynn 11/05/2010 3.50%  240,000  60.00 Livingston

Richter, Brett Alan 11/05/2010 2.76%  120,000  46.00 Clinton

Truckenbrod, Steven 11/18/2010 5.25%  104,000  40.00 Ogle

Elliott, Lee Wayne & Latisha 11/30/2010 4.25%  112,000  80.00 Jasper

Mattingly II, Douglas E. 12/27/2010 3.75%  77,120  30.00 Edgar

McLaughlin, Wade C. 12/27/2010 4.67%  150,000  60.70 Henry

Ridgely, Jordan 12/27/2010 3.95%  316,000  149.00 Hamilton

Werkheiser, Wade 12/27/2010 3.90%  345,330  161.00 Henry

Waldrop, Ryan D. & Heather D. 12/28/2010 4.25%  237,268  130.60 Lawrence

Total Beginner Farmer Bonds Issued $ 4,525,669  1,748.70

AG Farm Purchase Guarantee

Initial 

Interest 

RateDate Funded Loan Proceeds State Guarantee

Kerber, Gregory & Jan 10/28/2010 5.85%  500,000  425,000

$ 500,000 $ 425,000Total AG Farm Purchase Guarantee

$ 500,000 $ 425,000Total Agriculture Guarantees

ref:  T:\Bond Reports\Bond Issued Reports\Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book.rpt



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Finance Authority  "IFA"
306       Agriculture 4

91         Education 5

234       Healthcare 7

76         Industrial Development [includes Recovery Zone/Midwest Disas 8

22         Local Government 11

18         Multifamily/Senior Housing 17

96         501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 18

5           Exempt Facilities Bonds 19

848       Total IFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Development Finance Authority "IDFA" [ b ]

4           Education 31

5           Healthcare 33

70         Industrial Development 34

35         Local Government 35

16         Multifamily/Senior Housing 39

100       501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 40

1           Exempt Facilities Bonds 41

227       Total IDFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Rural Bond Bank "IRBB" [ b ]

17         Bond Bank Revenue Bonds 75

1           Conduit Debt 74

18         Total IRBB Principal Outstanding

102       Illinois Health Facilities Authority "IHFA" 64

49         Illinois Educational Facilities Authority "IEFA" 62

561       Illinois Farm Development Authority "IFDA" [ f ] 71

1,805    

General Purpose Moral Obligations

17         Issued through IRBB - Local Government Pools 75

7           Issued through IFA - Local Government Pools 12

2           Issued through IFA - Illinois Medical District Commission 15

26         Total General Moral Obligations

Financially Distressed Cities Moral Obligations

3           Issued through IFA 14

1           Issued through IDFA 37

4           Total Financially Distressed Cities

State Component Unit Bonds  [ c ]

17         Issued through IRBB 75

1           Issued through IDFA 32

1           Issued through IFA 6

19         Total State Component Unit Bonds

1           Midwest Disaster Bonds [Flood Relief] 10

-        Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds; 
8           Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds 9

-        Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds

Illinois Power Agency

16,940,000$                  12,900,000$            4,040,000$           
292,400,000$                 

666,972,000$                 

133,846,000$                 
218,755,000$          

Bonds Issued as of 
December 31, 2010

1,515,271,000$       

14,580,000                       

Section I (c)

2,395,000$                       
4,660,000                         

50,000,000$            

45,828,000$                     

 Remaining 
Capacity December 31, 2010

 Program 
Limitations 

Section I (a) Principal Outstanding

25,715,000                     

146,458,000                   

41,506,000                     

548,017,000                   

1,495,071,000$     

4,000,000,000$     4,000,000,000$       

-$                        

December 31, 2010
 Program 

Limitations 

 Remaining 
Capacity 

 Remaining 
Capacity 

56,645,000$          

42,610,000$          

Designated exclusive Issuer by the Governor of the State of Illinois to issue Midwest Disaster Area Bonds in Illinois, February 11, 2010.

Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations June 30, 2010 December 31, 2010

June 30, 2010
Section I (b)

1,446,134,000$               

2,390,000                         

23,849,946,000$             

42,055,000$                     

28,775,000$                     

404,660,000                     

43,838,000$                   

3,642,636,000$     

130,300,000                   

159,328,000                   

18,033,139,000$            

130,500,000                     
1,300,963,000                

157,979,000                     

16,831,623,000$             

372,202,000                   

3,825,000$                     

7,390,000$                     

25,715,000$                   
13,890,000                     

4,233,000                       

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(b)]

 Remaining 
Capacity 

-$                                         

73,645,000$          

Principal Outstanding

-$                       

Section II

-$                                  

June 30, 2010

1,000,457,000$               

Section I (d)

 Designated by the Governor of the State of Illinois to manage and coordinate the re-allocation of Federal ARRA Volume Cap and the issuance of Recovery Zone 
Bonds in the State of Illinois to fully utilize RZBs before December 31, 2010. 

 Available "Ceded" 
Volume Cap 

20,200,000$                   

-$                                  

-$                               

 City/Counties Ceded 
Voluntarily to IFA 

ARRA Act of 2009 Volume 

Cap Allocated [ h ]

981,639,000                   
24,860,000                     

2,334,042,000$              

3,565,000                       

42,055,000$                   

24,507,364,000$            

1,419,157,000$              

28,000,000                     

93,355,000$                   

2,592,888,000$               

2,908,471,000$               

27,955,000$                   

2,651,016,000$              

2,240,000                       

219,360,000                   
42,196,000                       

June 30, 2010

46,455,000$                     

1,313,239,000                 

3,721,552,000                 
10,851,968,000               

345,870,000                     
264,060,000                     

24,860,000                       

28,000,000                       

26,385,000                       

562,917,000                     
386,034,000                     
147,219,000                     

1,025,002,000                 

4,863,000                         

7,055,000$                       

39,640,000                     40,000,000                       

150,000,000$          

3,706,448,000                
50,792,000$                   

259,285,000                   

11,588,407,000              
837,616,000                   

Conduit debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)] which does not constitute an indebtedness or an obligation, either general or moral, or a pledge of the full 
faith or a loan of the Authority, the State of Illinois or any Political Subdivision of the State within the purview of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provisions with special limited 
obligations of the Authority secured under provisions of the individual Bond Indentures and Loan Agreements with the exception of the bonds identified below in Section I (b) -- General 
Purpose Moral Obligation/State Component Parts -- which are subject to the $28.15B cap in Section 845-5(a).

Total Illinois Finance Authority Debt

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/801-40(w)]

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)]

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-60]

94,385,000$                     

26,385,000$                     

28,150,000,000$     

Principal Outstanding

26,385,000$                     25,715,000$                   

December 31, 2010
 Program 

Limitations 

ref:  N:\Board Summaries\2011\01 January\Print Ready for Board Book\Schedule of Debt by Market Sector.xls\Fiscal Year 2011 Prepared by:  J. K. Kuhn
1/12/2011  11:43 AM



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Agri Debt Guarantees [Restructuring Existing Debt] 87

97 Fund # 994 - Fund Balance   $ 9,940,751

AG Loan Guarantee Program [ e ]

55 Fund # 205 - Fund Balance  $ 7,651,586

12 Agri Industry Loan Guarantee Program 90

1 Renewable Fuels 91

2 Farm Purchase Guarantee Program 93

29 Specialized Livestock Guarantee Program 89

11 Young Farmer Loan Guarantee Program 92

152 Total State Guarantees

116 Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program               Fund # 572 161 157

10 Ambulance Revolving Loan Program             Fund # 334 160 156

Environmental [Large Business]
9 Issued through IFA 23

19 Issued through IDFA 46

28 Total Environmental [Large Business]

Environmental [Small Business]

28

#
Participation Loans

50 Business & Industry 115

22 Agriculture 116

72 Participation Loans exluding Defaults & Allowances

###

153

1 Illinois Facility Fund 145

4 Local Government Direct Loans 146

5 FmHA Loans 147

2 Renewable Energy [RED Fund] 148

84 Total Loans Outstanding

[ a ] Total subject to change; late month payment data may not be included at issuance of report.
[ b ] State Component Unit Bonds included in balance.
[ c ] Does not include Unamortized issuance premium as reported in Audited Financials.
[ d ] Program Limitation reflects the increase to $3 billion effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ e ] Program Limitation reflects the increase from $75 million to $225 million effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ f ] Beginner Farmer Bonds are currently updated annually; new bonds will be added under the Illinois Finance Authority when the bond closes.
[ g ]

[ h ]

[ i ] IFA is working with all of the 110 entities to encourage voluntary waivers to ensure that these resources are used to support project financing before the program expires on 
December 31, 2010.

Recovery Zone Bonds - Federal government allocated volume cap directly to all 102 Illinois counties and 8 municipalities with population of 100,000 or more.             [Public Act 
96-1020]

32,541,000$      

 Program 
Limitations 

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 830-25 (see also P.A.96-103); 830-30; 830-35; 830-45 and 830-50]

Section IV
State Exposure 

3,000,000,000$     

 Remaining 
Capacity 

 Program 
Limitations 

2,069,000          

48,478,000$      

 Appropriation Fiscal 
Year 2011 

180,001,000$   

160,000,000$   

225,000,000$   

 Remaining 
Capacity 

 Fund Balance 

2,511,013$           

385,000,000$   321,205,000$   

Section VI

Section VII

Note:  Due to deposits in transit, the Cash Balance at the Illinois Office of the Comptroller may differ from the Illinois Finance Authority's General Ledger.

Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

316,197,000$                 
357,290,000                   

688,505,000$                  

-                                    75,000,000$            

Midwest Disaster Bonds - Illinois Counties eligible for Midwest Disaster Bonds include Adams, Calhoun, Clark, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Hancock, 
Henderson, Jasper, Jersey, Lake, Lawrence, Mercer, Rock Island, Whiteside and Winnebago.

18,730,135$     

993,200$          

Remaining 
Capacity 

1,751,513,000$     

75,000,000$          

1,826,513,000$     

4,640,356.14                  

294,526.74$                   

2,425,000,000$       

8,880,000          

832,213$               

842,000             
6,369,000          

14,381,000        

December 31, 2010
Principal Outstanding

-$                                

688,505,000$                  

372,065,000                     

8,625,000         
2,564,000         

7,493,000                    

June 30, 2010

17,515,298$          

63,795,000$                

6,003,342$                     

18,859,059.53$              

1,000,000.00$                

673,487,000$                 

2,500,000,000$       

December 31, 2010
Principal Outstanding

673,487,000$                 

3,736,072.86                  

1,143,112.67                  

16,266,099.34$              

-$                                         

141,204,000$   

June 30, 2010

-$                                  

15,937,000$      

Clean Coal, Coal ,Renewable Energy and                             Energy 
Efficiency Projects

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Section 825-65(f); 825-70 and 825-75] - see also P.A. 96-103 effective 01/01/2010

Section III
June 30, 2010 December 31, 2010

Principal Outstanding

491,000            

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2010

December 31, 2010

2,434,000                    

991,000                       

Issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/9]

Section V

7,006,800$                     590$                      

24,445,000       
11,104,000$     

20,300,000$     

44,999,000$                

10,447,000$                
23,634,000                  

18,796,000$                

23,020,157.95         
6,079,859.01           

29,100,016.96$       

17,018,322.85                 14,218,703.39                

Illinois Finance Authority Funds at Risk

June 30, 2010 Original Amount 

Total Environment Bonds Issued under Act

3,000,000,000$       [ d ]

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 825-80 and 825-85 

67,529,000$     

47,229,000$     

316,440,000                     

Principal Outstanding

1,000,000.00$         

1,289,750.00$         

4,969,295.79                   

21,987,618.64$               

1,000,000.00$                 

1,781,154.98$                 

Total Participation Loans

Plus:  Legacy IDFA Loans in Default

Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

963,250.00$            339,197.83$                   

34,353,016.96$       27,168,891.01$               

1,819,903.95$                 2,000,000.00$         1,719,655.10$                

19,619,479.01$              

580,213.44$                    

ref:  N:\Board Summaries\2011\01 January\Print Ready for Board Book\Schedule of Debt by Market Sector.xls\Fiscal Year 2011 Prepared by:  J. K. Kuhn
1/12/2011  11:43 AM





















































































MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 14, 2010, MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “IFA”), pursuant to notice duly given, 
held a Committee of the Whole Meeting at 8:30 a.m. on December 14, 2010, at the Chicago Office of the IFA at 180 
North Stetson, Suite 2555, Chicago, IL 60601. 
 

Members Present: 
1. William A. Brandt Jr., Chairman  
2. Michael Goetz, Vice Chairman 
3. Dr. William Barclay 
4. Gila Bronner  
5. Norman Gold 
6.  Dr. Roger Herrin 
7.  Edward Leonard, Sr.  
8.  Terrence O’Brien  
9.  Roger Poole 
10. Bradley A. Zeller 
 

Members Absent: 
11.  Ronald E. DeNard 
12.  John “Jack” Durburg  
13.  James J. Fuentes 
14.  Joseph McInerney  
15.  Heather Parish  
 
 
Vacancies: None 

Staff Present:  
Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
Brendan M. Cournane, General Counsel 
Rich Frampton, Vice President 
Pam Lenane, Vice President 
Jim Senica, Sr. Funding Manager 
Arthur S. Friedson, Chief HR Officer 
Ximena Granda, Asst. CFO 
Brad R. Fletcher, Paralegal 
Nora O’Brien, Legal Staffer 
Ahad Syed, Asst. Board Sect. /Admin. Asst.  
 
 
Staff Participating by Telephone:  
Lorrie Karcher, AG Program Coordinator 
 
IFA Advisors Present:  
Courtney Shea, Sr. VP, Acacia Financial 
Lois Scott, President, Scott Balice 
Jessica Carter, Scott Balice  
Shannon Williams, Assoc., Scott Balice 
 

 
 
Call to Order, Establishment of Quorum and Roll Call 
 
Chairman Brandt called the meeting to order at 8:54 a.m. with the above members present. He welcomed Members 
of the Board, IFA staff and guests present at the meeting. The Chairman then asked the Assistant Board Secretary, 
Mr. Syed to call the roll. There being ten (10) members physically present, Mr. Syed declared a quorum present.  
 
Chairman’s Remarks 
 
Chairman Brandt began by speaking about the Recovery Zone Facility Bond (“RZFBs”) program. The Chairman 
explained that it seemed likely that the RZFBs would not be extended past December 31, 2010. The re was 
discussion about the use of RZFBs for several projects throughout Illinois, including the Navistar project.  
 
The Chairman explained that the IFA worked diligently to apply the RZFBs to other qualified projects before the 
end of 2010. He noted that it would be unlikely for any more new projects to come to the Authority’s attention for 
the remainder of calendar year 2010.  
 
Lastly, the Chairman explained to all present that the Board Members would enter into a closed session towards the 
end of the Committee of the Whole to discuss the report of the Nominating and Compensation Committee.  
 
The Chairman then asked the Executive Director to present his message.  
 
 
 
 
 



 2

Executive Director’s Presentation 
 
Director Meister thanked the Chairman and began his presentation. The Director began by noting that much of the 
agenda before the Board was tied to the sunsetting of a number of key programs of high importance to the Authority 
such as RZFBs. The Director thanked Mr. Frampton for his hard work during the past month in completing and 
bringing most of the projects on December’s agenda before the Authority’s regularly scheduled Board Meeting.   
 
Director Meister summarized SB 3776, a bill that would enhance transparency and accountability within the Tax 
Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (“TEFRA”). SB 3776 received bipartisan and bicameral support in the Illinois 
General Assembly.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Director Meister for his presentation and asked for the senior staff reports.  
 
Senior Staff Reports 
 
Chairman Brandt asked Ms. Granda for her report.  
 
Ms. Granda presented the financials. She explained that the gross revenue year-to-date for November was $3.448 
Million or $1.207 Million over budget. Total operating expenses were $2.234 Million or $139,845 over budget. This 
is primarily due to the Loan Loss Provision. Year-to-date net income for the month of November was $1.234 
Million or $1.086 Million higher than budget and $239,536 higher than the same period last fiscal year.  
 
Ms. Granda explained that as of June 30, 2010, the participation loan portfolio was $22,451,707 for eighty-three 
(83) loans. From July through November the IFA has received nine (9) loan payoffs of which six (6) are business 
and industry for a total of $1,358,710 and three (3) are agricultural loans for a total of $171,688. Participation 
reduction for the same time period of active loans is $885,275. This brings a decrease to the participation loan 
portfolio of $2,415,673 for a remaining principle balance of $20,036,034 for seventy-five (75) loans. Since 
finalizing the financials for November, the IFA has received two (2) loan payoffs in the amount of $428,010 and 
both are in the business and industry category.  
 
Finally, Ms. Granda stated that there are ten (10) potential audit findings. None of these findings appear to be 
material.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Ms. Granda and asked for the Committee Reports. 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Chairman Brandt asked Dr. Barclay for the Venture Capital Committee report. 
 
Dr. Barclay explained that the Venture Capital Committee met with Jessica Carter of Scott Balice Strategies and 
discussed the IFA Venture Capital business model and the business model of the Authority’s predecessor, the 
Illinois Development Finance Authority (“IDFA”). Dr. Barclay stated that the conclusion of the Committee was that 
the current Venture Capital model does not fit the IFA profile. Dr. Barclay acknowledged that although the IDFA 
had a few remarkable successes during the mid-1980s those gains were not enough to warrant the continuation of 
the current Venture Capital business model. Dr. Barclay explained that the Committee reached this conclusion after 
a thorough evaluation of the Authority’s Venture Capital portfolio. There was short discussion regarding the 
Authority’s current Venture Capital business model.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Dr. Barclay and asked Mr. Leonard for the Agriculture Committee report.  
 
Mr. Leonard explained that the Agriculture Committee met at the regular time duly noticed. Mr. Leonard stated that 
the Agriculture Committee received five Beginning Farmer Bonds (“BFBs”) for approval. All five BFBs were 
approved without objection and are recommended for approval to the Board.  
 
 
 



 3

Chairman Brandt thanked Mr. Leonard and asked Dr. Herrin for the Energy Committee Report.  
 
Dr. Herrin explained that the Energy Committee met at the regular time duly noticed. Dr. Herrin stated that the 
Energy Committee received four projects for approval. All four projects were approved without objection and are 
recommended for approval to the Board.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Dr. Herrin and asked Dr. Barclay for the Healthcare Committee reports.  
 
Dr. Barclay explained that the Healthcare Committee met at the regular time duly noticed and recommends the two 
projects that appeared before the Healthcare Committee. Furthermore, Dr. Barclay explained that the Committee 
discussed a disturbing article regarding racial disparities in healthcare within the City of Chicago. Dr. Barclay stated 
that the Healthcare Committee is working diligently to extend the access of safety net hospitals that serve the 
disadvantaged. Furthermore, Dr. Barclay explained that the agenda for today includes a resolution authorizing an 
IFA Medicaid Receivables program. There was brief discussion regarding the history of the Medicaid Receivables 
program in the State of Illinois. 
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Dr. Barclay and asked for the Project Reports. 
 
Project Reports  
 
Agriculture 
 
Mr. Senica presented the following projects for approval:  
 
No. 1A:     Ryan D. & Heather D. Waldrop - $237,268 – 130.6 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $237,268 for the purchase of approximately 130.6 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Lawrence County, near Sumner, IL.  

 
No. 1B:               Wade C. McLaughlin - $150,000 – 60.7 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $150,000 for the purchase of approximately 60.7 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Henry County, near Woodhull, IL.  
 

No. 1C:               Jordan Ridgely – $325,000 – 149 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $325,000 for the purchase of approximately 149 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Hamilton County, near Olney, IL.  

 
No. 1D:               Wade Werkheiser - $345,330 – 161 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $345,330 for the purchase of approximately 161 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Henry County, near Kewanee, IL.  

 
No. 1E:               Douglas E. Mattingly II - $77,120 – 30 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $77,120 for the purchase of approximately 30 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Edgar County, near Paris, IL.  

 
 
 



 4

Business and Industry 
 
No. 3: AML Campus II, LLC & AML Equipment Corporation (Alef Sausage, Inc) - $3,000,000 – 

Final (One-Time Consideration)  
 
AML Campus II, LLC & AML Equipment Corporation (Alef Sausage, Inc) is requesting approval 
of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $3,000,000. Bond Proceeds will enable 
AML Campus II, LLC and AML Equipment Corporation to (i) construct and equip an existing 
manufacturing facility located in Mundelein (Lake County); (ii) acquire new machinery and 
equipment for use therein; and (iii) pay costs of issuance.  The project will be owned by AML 
Campus II, LLC & AML Equipment Corporation and leased in connection with the manufacturing 
of sausage and other prepared meats.  AML Campus II, LLC, AML Equipment Corporation and 
Alef Sausage, Inc. are affiliated through common ownership. 
 

Local Government 
 
No. 16:   Village of Deerfield - $20,000,000 – Preliminary 
   

The Village of Deerfield is requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in an amount 
not-to-exceed $20,000,000. The Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds will be used to (i) improve 
the Village of Deerfield’s Wastewater Reclamation Facility; and (ii) replace and renovate 
equipment and structures.    

 
No. 18:  Resolution approving the transfer of ownership and lead lender relationship in connection 

with a Renewable Energy Development Participation Loan to Agri-Wind, LLC and Agri-
Wind Project, LLC. (John Deere Credit)  

 
John Deere Credit has requested consent allowing transfer of two existing loans to Exelon 
Generation Company, LLC. 

 
Healthcare 
 
Ms. Lenane presented the following project for approval:  
 
No. 15:   Mercy Circle - $30,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
   

Mercy Circle is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed 
$30,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used to pay or reimburse the costs of: (i) acquiring, 
constructing, and equipping construction, installation and equipping a continuing care retirement 
community on six acres of land on the far south side of Chicago, including related administrative 
facilities; and approximately 108 adjacent parking spaces; (ii) capitalized interest on the Bonds; 
and (iii) costs of issuance.   

 
There was a brief discussion regarding the Mercy Circle project. Chairman Brandt explained that this project would 
be voted on first during the Board Meeting since Mr. O’Brien will abstain due to the fact that his firm has 
represented the Sisters of Mercy in certain matters.  
 
No. 25:  Resolution to Establish a Medicaid Receivables Program 
 

Resolution authorizing the Executive Director and the staff of the Authority to structure a program 
assisting the State of Illinois finance Medicaid Receivables. 

 
 
 
 
 



 5

Business and Industry 
 
No. 2: Concordia Place Apartments, L.P. - $17,000,000 – Final  

 
Concordia Place Apartment, L.P. is requesting the approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an 
amount not-to-exceed $17,000,000. Bond Proceeds and other available funds will be used by 
Concordia Place Apartments, L.P. to (i) refund the remaining outstanding balance of the City of 
Chicago Series 2003 Revenue Bonds and IFA Series 2006 Subordinate Bonds; (ii) finance 
capitalization of certain reserve funds required by the Credit Enhancer (Harris Bank, N.A.); (iii) 
renovate the project; and (iv) pay costs of issuance.  

 
No. 4:  KONE Centre Investment Fund, LLC – $21,000,000 – Final   
 

KONE Centre Investment Fund, LLC is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an 
amount not-to-exceed $21,000,000. Bond Proceeds of the IFA Series 2010 Midwestern Disaster 
Area Bonds (KONE Centre Project), combined with other sources of debt and equity, will be 
loaned to KONE Centre Investment Fund, LLC and Financial District Properties KP, LLC, an 
Illinois limited liability company, to (i) acquire, construct and equip an approximately 115,000 
Square Foot, 8-story office and residential building to be located on an approximately 2.184 acre 
site at 1 KONE Court (at the southeast corner of 17th Street and 2nd Avenue) in Moline (Rock 
Island County), Illinois; and (ii) finance costs of issuance.  The Project will be owned by the 
Financial District Properties KP, LLC.   

 
No. 5:  Mayo Properties LLC (Moran Transportation Corporation Project) – $4,100,000 – Final   
 

Mayo Properties LLC (Moran Transportation Corporation Project) is requesting approval of a 
Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $4,100,000. Bond Proceeds will be used to (i) 
acquire land; (ii) construct and equip a facility for use by Moran Transportation Corporation used 
in the Company’s warehousing, logistics, and trucking operations; and (iii) pay costs of issuance.  

 
No. 6: 1200 Internationale Parkway LLC and/or 4580 Weaver LLC (MicroSun Technologies LLC 

Project) – $3,500,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration)  
 

1200 Internationale Parkway LLC and/or 4580 Weaver LLC (MicroSun Technologies LLC 
Project) is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $3,500,000. 
Bond Proceeds will be used to (i) acquire, renovate, construct and equip an approximately 98,500 
Square Foot industrial/warehousing building located in Woodridge, Illinois for a facility that will 
be leased to MicroSun Technologies, LLC, an affiliated company under common ownership to be 
used in connection with its business of designing and manufacturing rechargeable batteries, 
chargers and power supplies for portable devices; (ii) acquire and renovate an approximately an 
approximately 48,000 Square Foot building located at 4580 Weaver Road, Warrenville, Illinois to 
be leased by 4580 Weaver LLC to Phonak LLC (an unaffiliated company) for use in the 
manufacturing of hearing and communication solutions; (iii) pay costs of issuance.  

 
No. 7: Rochelle Energy Center, LLC – $10,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration)   
 

Rochelle Energy Center, LLC is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-
to-exceed $10,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used to enable Rochelle Energy Center, LLC to (i) 
construct and equip a new gas-to-energy facility in Rochelle, Illinois; and (ii) pay costs of 
issuance.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

No. 8: SMART Hotels/Olympia Chicago, LLC (Harper Court Hotel Project) – $23,000,000 – Final 
(One-Time Consideration)  

 
SMART Hotels/Olympia Chicago, LLC (Harper Court Hotel Project) is requesting approval of a 
Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $23,000,000. Bond Proceeds together with 
other funds will be used to (i) acquire land; (ii) construct and equip a 6-story, 130-unit select-
service hotel, that will be located near the northeast corner of East 52nd Place and South Harper 
Court (and to be constructed as a part of a mixed-use redevelopment project that will include 
100,000 Square Feet of office space, 150,000 Square Feet of retail and rental units and 
condominiums known at the Harper Court Project that will be financed separately from this 
Recovery Zone Facility Revenue Bond issue) in Chicago; and (iii) pay capitalized interest; and 
(iv) to pay costs of issuance.   

 
No. 9:  JH Naperville Hotel, LLC - $30,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
 

JH Naperville Hotel, LLC is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-
exceed $30,000,000. Bond Proceeds together with other available funds and used by JH 
Naperville Hotel LLC to (i) acquire, renovate and equip an existing 7-story, 280,000 Square Foot, 
426-room hotel facility in Naperville, IL; (ii) pay capitalized interest and fund certain reserves; 
and (iii) pay costs of issuance. 

 
Higher Education, Cultural and Other Non-Healthcare 501(c)(3)’s  
 
No. 10:  CHF-Normal, L.L.C. and its affiliates - $65,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

CHF-Normal, L.L.C. and its affiliates are requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in 
an amount not-to-exceed $65,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by CHF-Normal, L.L.C. to (i) 
design, construct and equip an approximately 228-unit, 896-bed student residence facility under a 
ground lease from Illinois State University in Normal, Illinois; (ii) demolish the project site which 
is currently the site of Cardinal Court student housing property; and (iii) construct approximately 
700 surface parking spaces, approximately 350 bike racks and various site improvements, 
including an enhanced pedestrian walkway to campus.   

 
No. 11:  CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. and its affiliates - $135,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. and its affiliates are requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution 
in an amount not-to-exceed $135,000,000. Bond proceeds will be used by CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. 
to (i) design, construct and equip an approximately 1,008-bed facility, including dining facilities 
and a community center on Northern Illinois University’s campus in DeKalb, Illinois; (ii) pay 
capitalized interest during construction; (iii) capitalize a debt service reserve fund; and (iv) pay 
costs of issuance.   

 
No. 12:  Creative Children’s Academy (d/b/a Quest Academy) - $3,700,000 – Final (One-Time 

Consideration) 
 

Creative Children’s Academy (d/b/a Quest Academy) is requesting approval of a Final Bond 
Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $3,700,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by Creative 
Children’s Academy d/b/a Quest Academy to (i) acquire land and related site improvements in 
conjunction with the subject land being used as green space, outdoor environment learning space 
and athletic fields by the Borrower; (ii) refinance the outstanding principal balance of IDFA Series 
1998 Bonds; (iii) fund capitalized interest; and (iv) pay costs of issuance. 

 
 
 
 
 



 7

No. 13:   St. Francis High School College Preparatory - $4,500,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
 

St. Francis High School College Preparatory is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in 
an amount not-to-exceed $4,500,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by St. Francis High School 
College Preparatory to (i) construct and equip educational facilities; and (ii) pay costs of issuance. 

 
No. 14:   Illinois College - $4,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
 

Illinois College is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed 
$4,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by Illinois College to (i) finance various leasehold 
improvements that will enable Illinois College to undertake various energy conservations projects 
including: (a) upgrade its Mechanical Systems/HVAC and Lighting/Electrical systems, construct a 
new pitched roof system, install window/door upgrades and complete interior remodeling work at 
Gardner Residence Hall; (b) upgrade  Primary/Secondary Chilled Water Piping, converting to 
Variable Flow Pumping and installing Direct Digital Controls at its Parker Science building; (c) 
consolidate utility meters, install energy-efficient lighting and expand Building Automation 
Systems throughout Illinois College’s campus in Jacksonville; (ii) to pay capitalized interest; and 
(iii) pay costs of issuance.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 8

Resolutions 
 
No. 17: Resolution amending loan documents in connection with the Chinese American Service 

League  
 
No. 19: Request by State Bank (Freeport, Illinois) for approval of a 5-year Extension of a term 

Participation Loan to Freeport/Stephenson County Visitor’s Center NFP.  
 
No. 20: Resolution approving the extension of a loan from the Authority to the IFF, as successor to 

Illinois Facilities Fund, Inc.  
 
No. 21: Resolution authorizing the issuance of a substitute or amended and restated Revenue Bond 

in exchange for the IFA Revenue Refunding Bonds (Alexian Brothers Health System), Series 
2009 

 
No. 22: Resolution appointing the Executive Director for a one-year term of office 
 
No. 23: Resolution to Adopt the Report of Compensation Committee 
 
No. 24: Resolution assigning a $7,300,000 Recovery Zone Facility Bond allocation to Bond County 

for the Donnewald Distribution Co. Project 
 
 
Private Session 
 
Chairman Brandt thanked the IFA Staff for their presentation and the Chairman made a motioned to enter into a 
private session to discuss agenda items Nos. 22 and 23. Mr. O’Brien seconded the motion. The Committee of the 
Whole unanimously agreed, by roll call vote, to enter into private session at 11:02 a.m.  
 
Chairman Brandt asked for a motion to approve exiting the private session at 11:34 a.m. Mr. Goetz motioned to 
approve and Ms. Bronner seconded the motion. The Committee, by roll call vote, concurred that the private session 
be adjourned.  
 
Other Business  
 
Chairman Brandt explained that at the Board Meeting the Members will vote affirmatively to approve agenda items 
Nos. 22 and 23. 
  
Adjournment 
 
The Chairman thanked the Board, IFA staff and the financial advisors for appearing at the meeting and asked if 
there was any additional information for the Board’s consideration. Hearing none he moved to adjourn the meeting. 
Mr. Leonard seconded the motion. The Committee of the Whole unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:36 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by  
Ahad Syed 
Assistant Board Secretary 
 



MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 14, 2010, MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “IFA” or the “Authority”), pursuant to 
notice duly given, held a Board Meeting at 11:30 a.m. on Tuesday, December 14, 2010, at the Prudential Plaza 
Conference Center at 130 East Randolph Street, 7th Floor, Chicago, IL 60601.  
 

Members Present: 
1. William A. Brandt Jr., Chairman 
2. Michael Goetz, Vice Chairman 
3. Dr. William Barclay 
4. Gila Bronner 
5. Norman Gold 
6. Dr. Roger Herrin 
7. Edward Leonard, Sr. 
8. Terrence O’Brien 
9. Roger Poole 
10. Bradley A. Zeller 
 

Members Absent: 
11. Ronald E. DeNard 
12. John “Jack” Durburg  
13. James J. Fuentes  
14. Joseph McInerney 
15. Heather Parish 
 
 
Vacancies: None 

 
 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
Call to Order, Establishment of Quorum and Roll Call 
 
Chairman Brandt called the meeting to order at 11:40 a.m. with the above Members present. Chairman Brandt 
welcomed Members of the Board and all guests. He then asked the Assistant Board Secretary, Mr. Syed, to call the 
roll. There being ten (10) members physically present, Mr. Syed a quorum present.  
 
Chairman Brandt explained that the IFA is planning on tentatively scheduling its January Board Meeting on January 
11, 2010. There are some concerns that since the Governor’s Inaugural Ceremony would occur on January 10, 2010, 
it may be difficult for some Members and IFA staff to attend. 
 
Chairman Brandt explained that it appears imminent that the Recovery Zone Facility Bonds (RZFBs) will sunset on 
midnight December 31, 2010. In order to facilitate the prompt closing of some RZFB projects the IFA has 
tentatively scheduled a second Board Meeting on December 23, 2010.  
 
Acceptance of Financial Statements and Minutes 
 
Financial statements for the period ending November 30, 2010, and Minutes for both the Committee of the Whole 
and Board of Directors Meetings held on November 9, 2010, were presented to the Board. Chairman Brandt stated 
that the Authority’s Financial Statements and such Minutes were reviewed at the regularly scheduled Committee of 
the Whole meeting held at 8:30 a.m.  Chairman Brandt requested a motion to approve the November 30, 2010, 
Financial Statements and Minutes from both the Committee of the Whole and Board of Directors Meetings held on 
November 9, 2010.  
 
The motion was made by Dr. Barclay and seconded by Mr. Goetz. The November 30, 2010, Financial Statements 
and Minutes for both the Committee of the Whole and Board of Directors Meetings held on November 9, 2010, 
were unanimously approved by the Members of the Board.  
  
 



 2

Senior Staff Reports 
 
None.  
 
Project Approvals 
 
Chairman Brandt asked Mr. Rich Frampton, Vice President, to present the projects for consideration to the Board. 
The Chairman explained that all projects are reviewed by a staff Credit Committee and all agriculture, energy and 
healthcare projects are also reviewed at their respective committee’s public meeting each month. Finally, each 
project is discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held at 8:30 a.m. before the Board Meeting.  
 
Healthcare-No Guests 
 
Mr. Frampton presented the following projects for approval: 
 
No. 15:   Mercy Circle - $30,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
   

Mercy Circle is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed 
$30,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used to pay or reimburse the costs of: (i) acquiring, 
constructing, and equipping construction, installation and equipping a continuing care retirement 
community on six acres of land on the far south side of Chicago, including related administrative 
facilities; and approximately 108 adjacent parking spaces; (ii) capitalized interest on the Bonds; 
and (iii) costs of issuance.   

 
No guests attended with respect to Item No. 15. Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any questions with respect 
to Item No. 15. Mr. O’Brien stated that he must abstain due to the fact that his firm represents the Sisters of Mercy 
in certain matters. Item 15 received approval with 9 ayes, 0 nays and 1 abstention (O’Brien).  
 
 
Agriculture-No Guests 
     
No. 1A:     Ryan D. & Heather D. Waldrop - $237,268 – 130.6 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $237,268 for the purchase of approximately 130.6 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Lawrence County, near Sumner, IL.  

 
No. 1B:               Wade C. McLaughlin - $150,000 – 60.7 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $150,000 for the purchase of approximately 60.7 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Henry County, near Woodhull, IL.  
 

No. 1C:               Jordan Ridgely – $325,000 – 149 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $325,000 for the purchase of approximately 149 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Hamilton County, near Olney, IL.  

 
No. 1D:               Wade Werkheiser - $345,330 – 161 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $345,330 for the purchase of approximately 161 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Henry County, near Kewanee, IL.  

 
No. 1E:               Douglas E. Mattingly II - $77,120 – 30 acres 



 3

 
Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $77,120 for the purchase of approximately 30 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Edgar County, near Paris, IL.  

 
No guests attended with respect to Items Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1D or 1E. Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any 
questions with respect to Items Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1D or 1E. There being none, Chairman Brandt called a roll call 
vote on Item Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1D and 1E. Items Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1D and 1E received approval with 10 ayes, 0 
nays and 0 abstentions.  
 
 
Business and Industry-No Guests 
 
No. 2: Concordia Place Apartments, L.P. - $17,000,000 – Final  

 
Concordia Place Apartment, L.P. is requesting the approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an 
amount not-to-exceed $17,000,000. Bond Proceeds and other available funds will be used by 
Concordia Place Apartments, L.P. to (i) refund the remaining outstanding balance of the City of 
Chicago Series 2003 Revenue Bonds and IFA Series 2006 Subordinate Bonds; (ii) finance 
capitalization of certain reserve funds required by the Credit Enhancer (Harris Bank, N.A.); (iii) 
renovate the project; and (iv) pay costs of issuance.  
 

No. 3: AML Campus II, LLC & AML Equipment Corporation (Alef Sausage, Inc) - $3,000,000 – 
Final (One-Time Consideration)  
 
AML Campus II, LLC & AML Equipment Corporation (Alef Sausage, Inc) is requesting approval 
of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $3,000,000. Bond Proceeds will enable 
AML Campus II, LLC and AML Equipment Corporation to (i) construct and equip an existing 
manufacturing facility located in Mundelein (Lake County); (ii) acquire new machinery and 
equipment for use therein; and (iii) pay costs of issuance.  The project will be owned by AML 
Campus II, LLC & AML Equipment Corporation and leased in connection with the manufacturing 
of sausage and other prepared meats.  AML Campus II, LLC, AML Equipment Corporation and 
Alef Sausage, Inc. are affiliated through common ownership. 

 
No. 4:  KONE Centre Investment Fund, LLC – $21,000,000 – Final   
 

KONE Centre Investment Fund, LLC is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an 
amount not-to-exceed $21,000,000. Bond Proceeds of the IFA Series 2010 Midwestern Disaster 
Area Bonds (KONE Centre Project), combined with other sources of debt and equity, will be 
loaned to KONE Centre Investment Fund, LLC and Financial District Properties KP, LLC, an 
Illinois limited liability company, to (i) acquire, construct and equip an approximately 115,000 
Square Foot, 8-story office and residential building to be located on an approximately 2.184 acre 
site at 1 KONE Court (at the southeast corner of 17th Street and 2nd Avenue) in Moline (Rock 
Island County), Illinois; and (ii) finance costs of issuance.  The Project will be owned by the 
Financial District Properties KP, LLC.   

 
No. 5:  Mayo Properties LLC (Moran Transportation Corporation Project) – $4,100,000 – Final   
 

Mayo Properties LLC (Moran Transportation Corporation Project) is requesting approval of a 
Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $4,100,000. Bond Proceeds will be used to (i) 
acquire land; (ii) construct and equip a facility for use by Moran Transportation Corporation used 
in the Company’s warehousing, logistics, and trucking operations; and (iii) pay costs of issuance.  

 
 
 
 



 4

No. 6: 1200 Internationale Parkway LLC and/or 4580 Weaver LLC (MicroSun Technologies LLC 
Project) – $3,500,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration)  

 
1200 Internationale Parkway LLC and/or 4580 Weaver LLC (MicroSun Technologies LLC 
Project) is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $3,500,000. 
Bond Proceeds will be used to (i) acquire, renovate, construct and equip an approximately 98,500 
Square Foot industrial/warehousing building located in Woodridge, Illinois for a facility that will 
be leased to MicroSun Technologies, LLC, an affiliated company under common ownership to be 
used in connection with its business of designing and manufacturing rechargeable batteries, 
chargers and power supplies for portable devices; (ii) acquire and renovate an approximately an 
approximately 48,000 Square Foot building located at 4580 Weaver Road, Warrenville, Illinois to 
be leased by 4580 Weaver LLC to Phonak LLC (an unaffiliated company) for use in the 
manufacturing of hearing and communication solutions; (iii) pay costs of issuance.  

 
 
No. 7: Rochelle Energy Center, LLC – $10,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration)   
 

Rochelle Energy Center, LLC is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-
to-exceed $10,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used to enable Rochelle Energy Center, LLC to (i) 
construct and equip a new gas-to-energy facility in Rochelle, Illinois; and (ii) pay costs of 
issuance.  

 
No guests attended with respect to Items Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 or 7. Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any 
questions with respect to Items Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 or 7. There being none, Chairman Brandt requested leave to apply 
the last unanimous vote in favor of Items Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7.  Items Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 received approval 
with 10 ayes, 0 nays and 0 abstentions.  
 
 
Higher Education, Cultural and Other Non-Healthcare 501(c)(3)’s-No Guests 
 
No. 10:  CHF-Normal, L.L.C. and its affiliates - $65,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

CHF-Normal, L.L.C. and its affiliates are requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in 
an amount not-to-exceed $65,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by CHF-Normal, L.L.C. to (i) 
design, construct and equip an approximately 228-unit, 896-bed student residence facility under a 
ground lease from Illinois State University in Normal, Illinois; (ii) demolish the project site which 
is currently the site of Cardinal Court student housing property; and (iii) construct approximately 
700 surface parking spaces, approximately 350 bike racks and various site improvements, 
including an enhanced pedestrian walkway to campus.   

 
No. 11:  CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. and its affiliates - $135,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. and its affiliates are requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution 
in an amount not-to-exceed $135,000,000. Bond proceeds will be used by CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. 
to (i) design, construct and equip an approximately 1,008-bed facility, including dining facilities 
and a community center on Northern Illinois University’s campus in DeKalb, Illinois; (ii) pay 
capitalized interest during construction; (iii) capitalize a debt service reserve fund; and (iv) pay 
costs of issuance.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5

No. 12:  Creative Children’s Academy (d/b/a Quest Academy) - $3,700,000 – Final (One-Time 
Consideration) 

 
Creative Children’s Academy (d/b/a Quest Academy) is requesting approval of a Final Bond 
Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $3,700,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by Creative 
Children’s Academy d/b/a Quest Academy to (i) acquire land and related site improvements in 
conjunction with the subject land being used as green space, outdoor environment learning space 
and athletic fields by the Borrower; (ii) refinance the outstanding principal balance of IDFA Series 
1998 Bonds; (iii) fund capitalized interest; and (iv) pay costs of issuance. 

 
No. 13:   St. Francis High School College Preparatory - $4,500,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
 

St. Francis High School College Preparatory is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in 
an amount not-to-exceed $4,500,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by St. Francis High School 
College Preparatory to (i) construct and equip educational facilities; and (ii) pay costs of issuance. 

 
No. 14:   Illinois College - $4,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
 

Illinois College is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed 
$4,000,000. Bond Proceeds will be used by Illinois College to (i) finance various leasehold 
improvements that will enable Illinois College to undertake various energy conservations projects 
including: (a) upgrade its Mechanical Systems/HVAC and Lighting/Electrical systems, construct a 
new pitched roof system, install window/door upgrades and complete interior remodeling work at 
Gardner Residence Hall; (b) upgrade  Primary/Secondary Chilled Water Piping, converting to 
Variable Flow Pumping and installing Direct Digital Controls at its Parker Science building; (c) 
consolidate utility meters, install energy-efficient lighting and expand Building Automation 
Systems throughout Illinois College’s campus in Jacksonville; (ii) to pay capitalized interest; and 
(iii) pay costs of issuance.   

 
No guests attended with respect to Items Nos. 10, 11, 12, 13 or 14. Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any 
questions with respect to Items Nos. 10, 11, 12, 13 or 14. There being none, Chairman Brandt requested leave to 
apply the last unanimous vote in favor of Items Nos. 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14.  Items Nos. 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 
received approval with 10 ayes, 0 nays and 0 abstentions.  
 
 
Local Government-No Guests 

 
No. 16:   Village of Deerfield - $20,000,000 – Preliminary 
   

The Village of Deerfield is requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in an amount 
not-to-exceed $20,000,000. The Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds will be used to (i) improve 
the Village of Deerfield’s Wastewater Reclamation Facility; and (ii) replace and renovate 
equipment and structures.    

 
No guests attended with respect to Item No. 16. Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any questions with respect 
to Item No. 16. There being none, Chairman Brandt requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote in favor of 
Item No. 16.  Item No. 16 received approval with 10 ayes, 0 nays and 0 abstentions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

Resolutions-No Guests 
 
No. 17: Resolution amending loan documents in connection with the Chinese American Service 

League  
 
No. 18:  Resolution approving the transfer of ownership and lead lender relationship in connection 

with a Renewable Energy Development Participation Loan to Agri-Wind, LLC and Agri-
Wind Project, LLC. (John Deere Credit)  

 
No. 19: Request by State Bank (Freeport, Illinois) for approval of a 5-year Extension of a term 

Participation Loan to Freeport/Stephenson County Visitor’s Center NFP 
 
No. 20: Resolution approving the extension of a loan from the Authority to the IFF, as successor to 

Illinois Facilities Fund, Inc.  
 
No. 21: Resolution authorizing the issuance of a substitute or amended and restated Revenue Bond 

in exchange for the IFA Revenue Refunding Bonds (Alexian Brothers Health System), Series 
2009 

 
No. 22: Resolution appointing the Executive Director for a one-year term of office 
 
No. 23: Resolution to Adopt the Report of Compensation Committee 
 
No. 24: Resolution assigning a $7,300,000 Recovery Zone Facility Bond allocation to Bond County 

for the Donnewald Distribution Co. Project 
 
No. 25:  Resolution to Establish a Medicaid Receivables Program 
 
 
No guests attended with respect to Items Nos. 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 or 25. Chairman Brandt asked if the 
Board had any questions with respect to Items Nos. 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 or 25. There being none, Chairman 
Brandt requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote in favor of Items Nos. 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 and 25.  
Items Nos. 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 and 25 received approval with 10 ayes, 0 nays and 0 abstentions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7

Business and Industry with Guests 
 
No. 8: SMART Hotels/Olympia Chicago, LLC (Harper Court Hotel Project) – $23,000,000 – Final 

(One-Time Consideration)  
 

SMART Hotels/Olympia Chicago, LLC (Harper Court Hotel Project) is requesting approval of a 
Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-exceed $23,000,000. Bond Proceeds together with 
other funds will be used to (i) acquire land; (ii) construct and equip a 6-story, 130-unit select-
service hotel, that will be located near the northeast corner of East 52nd Place and South Harper 
Court (and to be constructed as a part of a mixed-use redevelopment project that will include 
100,000 Square Feet of office space, 150,000 Square Feet of retail and rental units and 
condominiums known at the Harper Court Project that will be financed separately from this 
Recovery Zone Facility Revenue Bond issue) in Chicago; and (iii) pay capitalized interest; and 
(iv) to pay costs of issuance.   
 

Mr. Frampton introduced Mr. Ed Small, President of Smart Hotels LLC. Mr. Small explained that the project will 
revitalized and bring jobs to the local community. Mr. Small stated that Recovery Zone Facility Bonds are vital to 
the project and that the hotel is projected to open by 2013. Mr. Small thanked the IFA Board and the IFA staff for 
their help in the transaction. 
 
Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any questions with respect to Item No. 8. There being none, Chairman 
Brandt requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote in favor of Item No. 8. Item No. 8 received approval with 
10 ayes, 0 nays and 0 abstentions. 
 
No. 9:  JH Naperville Hotel, LLC - $30,000,000 – Final (One-Time Consideration) 
 

JH Naperville Hotel, LLC is requesting approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not-to-
exceed $30,000,000. Bond Proceeds together with other available funds and used by JH 
Naperville Hotel LLC to (i) acquire, renovate and equip an existing 7-story, 280,000 Square Foot, 
426-room hotel facility in Naperville, IL; (ii) pay capitalized interest and fund certain reserves; 
and (iii) pay costs of issuance. 

 
Mr. Frampton introduced Mr. Gregory A. Spanos, Director of Acquisitions, Janko Group. Mr. Spanos explained that 
Janko Group is currently acquiring the existing hotel which is operating as a Holiday Inn Select and intend to close 
the project on December 30, 2010. Additionally, Mr. Spanos explained to the Board that the hotel will undergo a 
fifteen-month construction period. Lastly, Mr. Spanos thanked the IFA Board and Staff for expediting the 
application and for their continued support. Dr. Herrin asked a couple questions regarding the current status of the 
hotel and there was brief discussion.  
 
Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any questions with respect to Item No. 9. There being none, Chairman 
Brandt requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote in favor of Item No. 9. Item No. 9 received approval with 
10 ayes, 0 nays and 0 abstentions. 
 
Other Business 
 
None.  
 
Adjournment 
 
The Chairman then asked if there was any other business to come before the Board. Hearing none, Chairman Brandt 
requested a motion to adjourn. Upon a motion by Vice Chairman Goetz and seconded by Dr. Herrin, the Board 
unanimously voted to adjourn at 12:24 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted by  
Ahad Syed 
Assistant Board Secretary  



 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
Memorandum 

 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 

From:  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
 

Date:  January 18, 2011 
 

Re:  Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 
 

 Borrower/Project Name:  Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

 Locations:  Throughout Illinois 
 

 Board Action Requested:  Final Bond Resolution for the attached projects 
 

 Amount:  Up to $477,000 maximum of new money for each project 
 

 Project Type:  Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds 
 
 Total Requested: $943,095.00 
 
 Calendar Year Summary: (as of January 18, 2011) 

– Volume Cap:  Note Request is Pending – 2011 amount is to-be-determined 
– Volume Cap Committed:  $943,095 
– Volume Remaining:  To be determined 
– Average Acreage Farm Size:  48 
– Number of Farms Financed:  7 

 

 IFA Benefits: 
–  Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds – no direct IFA or State funds at risk 
–  New Money Bonds:   

– convey tax-exempt status  
– will use dedicated 2011 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer transactions  

 

 IFA Fees:   
 One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each project  
 

 Structure/Ratings:  
 Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s 

Bank 
 The Borrower’s Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan 
 Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Participating 

Bank, just as with any commercial loan 
 Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured 

commercial loan 
 

 Bond Counsel:     Burke, Burns & Pinelli, Ltd 
Stephen F. Welcome, Esq. 

   Three First National Plaza, Suite 4300 
   Chicago, IL  60602 
 



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 2  January 18, 2011 
  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
 

* Information enclosed in the border is to be considered confidential and may be exempt 
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 

 
 
A. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8440 
Borrower(s): Goebel, Greg D. & Krystal J. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Montrose, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $114,000 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 60 acres 
Purchase Price: $228,000 / ($3,800 per ac)   
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: Jasper / Central 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Peoples State Bank / Brian Bohnhoff 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 19th, John Shimkus 

State Senate: 55th, John Jones 
State House: 108th, David Reis 

 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty year amortization schedule, 
with the first principal payment date to begin on March 1, 2012. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance 
hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin on March 1, 2012 with the 
thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 

B. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8441 
Borrower(s): Goebel, Thad & Lindsay 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Montrose, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $98,000 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 60 acres 
Purchase Price: $196,000 / ($3,266 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: Jasper / Central 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Peoples State Bank / Brian Bohnhoff 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 19th, John Shimkus 

State Senate: 55th, John Jones 
State House: 108th, David Reis 

 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty year amortization schedule, 
with the first principal payment date to begin on March 1, 2012. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance 
hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin on March 1, 2012 with the 
thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 3  January 18, 2011 
  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
 

* Information enclosed in the border is to be considered confidential and may be exempt 
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 

 
 
C. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8442 
Borrower(s): Maedge, Travis M. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Highland, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $171,928 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 40 acres 
Purchase Price: $343,857 / ($8,596 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: Madison / Southwestern 
Lender/Bond Purchaser First Mid Illinois Bank & Trust / Bill Wagner 
Legislative Districts:*   Congressional: 19th, John Shimkus 

State Senate: 51st, Kyle McCarter 
State House: 102nd, Ron Stephens 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Twenty five year amortization 
schedule, with the first principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest 
on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year 
from the date of closing with the twenty fifth and final payment of all outstanding balances due twenty five 
years from the date of closing. 

D. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8443 
Borrower(s): Rich, Travis Wesley 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Robinson, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $146,667 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 26.66 acres 
Purchase Price: $146,667 / ($5,501 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 0% 
  % Other 0% 
  %IFA 100% 
County/Region: Crawford / Southeastern 
Lender/Bond Purchaser First National Bank in Olney / Richard Kocher 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 15th, Timothy Johnson 

State Senate: 55th, Dale Righter 
State House: 109th, Roger Eddy 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Twenty year amortization 
schedule, with the first principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest 
on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year 
from the date of closing with the twentieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due twenty years 
from the date of closing. 



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 4  January 18, 2011 
  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
 

* Information enclosed in the border is to be considered confidential and may be exempt 
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 

 
 
E. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8444 
Borrower(s): Thompson, Paul David 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Edwards, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $139,500 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 46.5 acres 
Purchase Price: $279,000 / ($6,000 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: Warren / West Central 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Midwest Bank of Western Illinois / Les Allen 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 18th, Aaron Schock 

State Senate: 37th, Dale Risinger 
State House: 73rd, David Leitch 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Twenty five year amortization 
schedule, with the first principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest 
on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year 
from the date of closing with the twenty fifth and final payment of all outstanding balances due twenty five 
years from the date of closing. 

F. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8445 
Borrower(s): Thompson, Teresa Lois 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Little York, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $139,500 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 46.5 acres 
Purchase Price: $279,000 / ($6,000 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: Warren / West Central 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Midwest Bank of Western Illinois / Les Allen 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 17th, Phil Hare 

State Senate: 47th, John Sullivan 
State House: 94th, Richard Myers 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Twenty five year amortization 
schedule, with the first principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest 
on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year 
from the date of closing with the twenty fifth and final payment of all outstanding balances due twenty five 
years from the date of closing. 

 



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 5  January 18, 2011 
  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
 

* Information enclosed in the border is to be considered confidential and may be exempt 
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 

 
 
G. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8446 
Borrower(s): Cox, Kevin W. & Lindsay K. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Illinois City, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $133,500 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 60 acres 
Purchase Price: $267,300 / ($4,455 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: Mercer / Northwest 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Joy State Bank / Bryan Hofmann 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 17th, Phil Hare 

State Senate: 36th, Mike Jacobs 
State House: 72nd, Patrick Verschoore 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty year amortization schedule, 
with the first principal payment date to begin on December 1, 2011.  Accrued interest on the unpaid 
balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin on December 1, 2011 
with the thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

December 14, 2010 

 CONDUIT
 
$65,000,000 
CHF-Normal, L.L.C.  

 
Purpose:  Bond proceeds will be used by CHF-Normal, L.L.C. (“CHF” or the “Borrower”) to (i) finance the 
acquisition, construction, furnishing, and equipping of an approximately 896-bed student residence facility 
consisting of five (5) four-story residential buildings, with a community center, parking lots and related facilities, 
under a ground lease with Illinois State University (“ISU” or the “University”) in Normal, Illinois.  Bond 
proceeds will also (ii) finance the cost of demolition of the building on the existing site, (iii) fund interest on the 
Bonds during construction, (iv) fund a debt service reserve fund, and (v) pay bond issuance costs (the “Project”).   
 
The Project will be owned by CHF-Normal, L.L.C, an affiliate of Collegiate Housing Foundation, a 501(c)(3) 
corporation based in Fairhope, AL.   The Project will be developed and constructed by an affiliate of American 
Campus Communities of Austin, TX.  Day-to-day operations will be managed by Illinois State University’s 
Student Housing Division. 
 
Program: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 
  
Extraordinary Conditions:  None.   
 

REQUEST 

No IFA Funds at risk.  No State Funds at risk.  

Final Bond Resolution BOARD ACTION 

Voting Record –  Preliminary Bond Resolution 12/14/2010:   
Ayes: 10; Nays: 0; Abstentions: 0; Absent: 5 (DeNard, Durburg Fuentes, McInerney, Parish); Vacancies: 0 

MATERIAL CHANGES Request Approval of Policy Exception:  Because the proposed project is being developed on behalf of a State 
University, it is recommended that Bonds may be sold in $5,000 denominations provided that the Bonds attain 
minimum ratings of Baa3/BBB-/BBB- from Moody’s/S&P/Fitch (i.e., this would be an exception to IFA’s 
standard minimum debt rating requirement of Baa2/BBB/BBB for Bonds sold in denominations of less than 
$100,000 pursuant to IFA’s Bond Program Handbook).   

JOB DATA 150 Current jobs 5-8 New jobs projected 

  150 Retained jobs 150 (16 months) Construction jobs projected 

BORROWER DESCRIPTION ● Type of entity:  CHF-Normal, L.L.C. is an Alabama limited liability company formed in June 2010 for the sole 
purpose of developing, owning, and operating the subject student housing project located at Illinois State 
University.  (CHF was selected pursuant to a Request-For-Proposal issued by ISU to construct and finance the 
Project.) 

 ● Location:  Normal/McLean/North Central 

CREDIT INDICATORS 
 

● The Bonds will be sold based on a direct rating of the Project.  The Underwriter anticipates a low investment 
grade rating on the Bonds (i.e., Baa3/BBB- from Moody’s/S&P).  
● The Bonds will be sold on the basis of the underlying direct rating only and will not be an obligation of Illinois 
State University. 

STRUCTURE ● Publicly offered tax-exempt, fixed rate bonds with a term not-to-exceed 33 years.  
● Security for the Bonds will include revenues collected by ISU on behalf of the Borrower and deposited with the 
Trustee, along with various reserve funds and accounts held under the Trust Indenture (including a Debt Service 
Reserve Fund, and a Repair and Replacement Reserve).    
● The Debt Service Reserve Fund will be fully funded at closing in an amount equal to maximum annual debt 
service on the Bonds.  Deposits to the Repair and Replacement Fund will be made on an annual basis from Project 
cash flows in an initial amount of $175 per bed per year. 
● The Borrower will execute a Security Agreement encumbering all of the Borrower’s rights, title and interest in 
and to the land and improvements; and an Assignment of Contract Documents, assigning the Borrower’s interest 
in the development agreement, construction contract and related documents. 

SOURCES AND USES IFA Bonds                $65,000,000 Project Costs:        $64,000,000 

                     Costs of Issuance       1,000,000 

  Total              $65,000,000 Total                      $65,000,000  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval including the policy exception noted above.  



CHF-Normal, L.L.C.    Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                            January 18, 2011 
Page 2                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BOARD SUMMARY 
January 18, 2011 

 
Project: CHF-Normal, L.L.C. 
 

STATISTICS 
 
IFA Project: N-NP-TE-CD-8436   Amount: $65,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount) 
Type:  501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   IFA Staff: Rich Frampton 
Location: Normal      County/   
        Region: McLean / North Central   
 

BOARD ACTION 
 
Final Bond Resolution   
Conduit 501(c)(3) Student Housing Revenue Bonds   
Credit committee recommends approval   No IFA funds at risk 
 
Policy Exception:  Given that the proposed project is being developed on behalf of a State University, Bonds would 
be sold in minimum denominations of $5,000 subject to receiving minimum ratings of Baa3/BBB-/BBB- from 
Moody’s/S&P/Fitch (as applicable).  These minimum ratings are being recommended, as an exception to the 
standard minimum rating requirement of Baa2/BBB/BBB applicable to Bonds sold in denominations of less than 
$100,000 under IFA’s Bond Program Handbook, in order to reduce the market interest rate on this Project. 
 
Additionally, it is contemplated that this Policy Exception will be recommended as part of IFA’s standard Bond 
Program Handbook policy in the future. 
 

VOTING RECORD 
 
Preliminary Bond Resolution – December 14, 2010: 
 
Ayes: 10; Nays: 0; Abstentions: 0; Absent: 5 (DeNard, Durburg, Fuentes, McInerney, Parish); Vacancies: 0 
 

PURPOSE 
 

To finance the design, development, construction and equipment of an approximately 228-unit, 896-bed student 
residence facility to be developed on land under a ground lease from Illinois State University and located at 700 
Gregory Street in Normal, Illinois.  The site of the Project is currently ISU’s Cardinal Court student housing site (the 
demolition of which will be financed with Bond proceeds).  The Project will also include construction of 
approximately 700 surface parking spaces and various site and related improvements, including an enhanced 
pedestrian walkway to campus (collectively, the “Project”).  This project will provide replacement housing at ISU 
and modernize ISU’s student housing facilities. Upon completion of this project, several existing student housing 
facilities will be decommissioned by the University. 
 
The Project will be owned by an affiliate of Collegiate Housing Foundation, a 501(c)(3) corporation based in 
Fairhope, AL that is engaged in developing 501(c)(3)-owned student housing projects nationally.  The Project will 
be developed and constructed by an affiliate American Campus Communities of Dallas, TX.  Day-to-day operations 
will be managed by Illinois State University. 



CHF-Normal, L.L.C.    Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                            January 18, 2011 
Page 3                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 
 
501(c)(3) Bonds are municipal bonds authorized under the Internal Revenue Code that enable 501(c)(3) corporations 
to finance capital projects furthering support of their mission.  The IFA’s issuance of these Bonds will convey 
federal tax-exempt status on interest paid to bondholders, thereby enabling bondholders to accept a below market 
interest rate that is passed through to the borrower.   
 

VOLUME CAP 
 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 
 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS – Preliminary, Subject to Change 

Sources: IFA 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 65,000,000$    Uses: Project Costs 46,500,000$   

Contingency/Other Refinancing 6,500,000$     

Capitalized Interest 6,500,000$     

Debt Service Reserve Fund 4,500,000$     

Costs of Issuance 1,000,000$     

Total:               65,000,000$    Total: 65,000,000$   

 
Note:  The amounts represented above are preliminary and subject to change.    The Capitalized Interest Fund will 
be established at an amount sufficient to fund interest expense to 4/1/2013 (i.e., and cover a period 6 months beyond 
the anticipated project completion date, as customary).  The Debt Service Reserve Fund will be capitalized at an 
amount sufficient to cover a minimum of one year’s maximum annual debt service payments.   
 

JOBS 
 
Current employment: 150 Projected new jobs: 5-8 
Jobs retained: 150 Construction jobs:  150 (16  
      months) 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY 
 

Bondholder’s 
Security/ 
Credit Ratings: The Borrower and RBC Capital Markets LLC contemplate obtaining a direct rating on the Bonds 

for sale to investors.  It is presently contemplated that the Bonds will have an underlying rating of 
Baa3/BBB- from Moody’s/Standard and Poor’s (see Policy Exception requested under “Material 
Changes” heading on p. 1 of this report). 
 
Under this “direct rating” structure, security for the Bonds will include Revenues collected by the 
University on behalf of the Borrower and deposited with the Trustee and funds and accounts held 
under the Trust Indenture including (a Construction Fund and Debt Service Fund/Capitalized 
Interest Account during the construction phase), Debt Service Reserve Fund and Repair and 
Replacement Fund.  The Debt Service Reserve Fund will be fully funded at closing in an amount 
equal to maximum annual debt service on the Bonds.  Additionally, a Repair and Replacement 
Fund will be capitalized on an annual basis from project cash flows in an initial amount of $175 
per bed per year. 

 
 As proposed, the Borrower would be required to execute the following documents:  (1) a Security 

Agreement, encumbering Project Revenues, equipment and inventory; (2) a Leasehold Mortgage 
and Assignment of Rents and Leases, encumbering all of the Borrower’s rights, title and interest in 



CHF-Normal, L.L.C.    Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                            January 18, 2011 
Page 4                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
and to the land and improvements; and (3) an Assignment of Contract Documents, assigning the 
Borrower’s interest in the development agreement, construction contact and other related 
agreements. 

 
Limited 
Obligations: The Bonds will be limited obligations of CHF-Normal, L.L.C., the Illinois Finance Authority, the 

State of Illinois, and Illinois State University, and will be payable only from revenues of the 
Project and secured by (i) a Leasehold Mortgage on the land and improvements, (ii) a collateral 
assignment of Rents and Leases, and (iii) a Security Agreement.  Pursuant to terms of the Ground 
Lease, CHF-Normal, L.L.C. will be subject to a rate covenant to revise rates, fees, and charges as 
necessary so that Revenue Available for Fixed Charges will be sufficient to meet the requirements 
of the Loan Agreement.  

 
Bonds will 
Be Non-Recourse 
to ISU, IFA, and 
the State of  
Illinois: The Bonds will not constitute a debt of Illinois State University, the Illinois Finance Authority, the 

State of Illinois, or any other political subdivision of the State and payment of the Bonds (and any 
interest thereon) will not be supported by the taxing powers, full faith and credit, or a moral 
obligation of the State of Illinois or any political subdivision. 

 
Underlying 
Project Ratings: The Bonds are anticipated to have an underlying rating of Baa3/BBB- from Moody’s and Standard 

and Poor’s, respectively.   
 
Structure/ 
Interest Rate: The expectation is that the Bonds would obtain a low investment grade rating (e.g., Baa3/BBB-) 

and sold on a fixed rate basis.  Interest rates will be based on market conditions at the time of 
closing. 

 
  Interest will be fully capitalized through February 1, 2013 (i.e., a date six months subsequent the 

anticipated substantial completion date of the Project).   
 
Maturity: 33 years (not-to-exceed) 
 
Anticipated 
Closing Date: February 2011 
 
Rationale:  The proposed financing will provide for the construction of approximately 826 beds of new and 

replacement student housing on the campus of Illinois State University on the site of the existing 
Cardinal Court student housing facility, which will be demolished to enable development of the 
CHF-Normal Project.  The Project will provide an affordable, on-campus housing option for ISU’s 
students and will have a positive impact on the surrounding community by enhancing the 
University’s ability to attract and retain students, which in turn provides economic activity in the 
area.  In the short-term, the Project will provide a source of construction related jobs. 

 
 Pursuant to the Ground Lease, ISU will support the Project by including as part of its student 

housing program on an equal basis with its existing University-owned facilities.  ISU will not 
direct or assign students on a priority basis to any facilities in preference of the Project (in contrast 
to the “First Fill Agreement” associated with the CHF-DeKalb II project at NIU.  Furthermore, 
after the new Project opens, ISU plans to decommission 1,583 beds of student housing on its 
South Campus.   

 



CHF-Normal, L.L.C.    Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                            January 18, 2011 
Page 5                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
  ISU issued a Request for Proposal in Spring 2010 for a third party developer to finance and 

construct university student housing facilities according to ISU design specifications.  The 
proposed financing will enable ISU to complete financing and construction of these student 
housing facilities without issuing its own debt. 

 
BUSINESS SUMMARY 

 
Background: CHF-Normal, L.L.C. (the “LLC” or the “Borrower”) is an Alabama Limited Liability Company 

formed in June 2010 for the sole purpose of owning and developing the subject student housing 
facility for Illinois State University (“ISU” or the “University”). 

  
 The sole Member of the Borrower is the Collegiate Housing Foundation (“the “Foundation”), 

an Alabama not-for-profit corporation established in 1996.  The Foundation received its 501(c)(3) 
Determination Letter from the IRS in 1997. 

 
 The Foundation is governed by a 6-member Board of Trustees (see Economic Disclosure 

Statement section on page 7 for further information). 
 
Description 
of the  
Member:  The Collegiate Housing Foundation’s mission is to assist college and universities by financing, 

owning, and operating student housing facilities on or near their campuses. 
 
 Since its founding, the Foundation and its affiliates have acquired, financed, and managed 33 

privatized student housing projects in 19 states, with aggregate project development costs of over 
$700 million. 

 
 The Collegiate Housing Foundation develops and finances each project as a stand-alone project-

based financing.  CHF forms a special purpose entity to serve as the Borrower and Owner of the 
subject student housing facilities to be developed.  The sponsoring college/university benefits 
since the project can potentially be financed on a revenue basis by prospective users. 

 
 As proposed, CHF-Normal, L.L.C. will lease the ground for the underlying project from ISU.  The 

Facility will be financed with proceeds of a tax-exempt bond issue and will be mortgaged (via a 
Leasehold Mortgage) as security for the Bondholders.  Upon completion, ISU’s Housing Division 
will manage day-to-day operations.  When the proposed Bonds are paid in full, the mortgage will 
be cancelled and the Foundation’s interest in the facility will be conveyed (i.e., donated) to Illinois 
State University. 

 
Prior IFA 
Experience with 
CHF: IFA has previous experience with the Foundation.  In 2006, IFA issued $19.38 million of 

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds for CHF-DeKalb, L.L.C., a special purpose entity that was formed by 
the Foundation to develop, construct, and finance a 120-unit replacement student apartment 
facility (“Northern View Apartments”) at Northern Illinois University (“NIU”).  The IFA Series 
2006 Bonds for CHF-DeKalb, L.L.C. are secured by a Direct Pay Letter of Credit from Sovereign 
Bank/Banco Santander.  All payments have been current.  NIU also engaged the Foundation to 
develop this privatized student housing project in 2006 pursuant to a Request for Proposal.  (As 
with the subject project at ISU, the 2006 NIU campus apartment project was constructed on a site 
under a ground lease from NIU.) 

  



CHF-Normal, L.L.C.    Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                            January 18, 2011 
Page 6                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
Description 
of the 
Developer: American Campus Communities (“ACC” or the “Company”) was founded in 1993, is based in 

Austin, TX, and has been publicly traded Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) on the New York 
Stock Exchange (NYSE Ticker:  ACC) since 2004.  ACC focuses on developing and owning 
student housing as its sole, core business.  ACC SC Development, LLC (the “Developer”) a 
Delaware Limited Liability company, is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary that is responsible 
for all third party development activities undertaken by ACC. 

 
Since 1996, ACC has developed more than $1.6 billion in properties for its own account and its 
university clients and has acquired in excess of $650 million in student housing assets.  ACC has 
developed 64 privatized student housing communities, consisting of more than 47,000 beds.  The 
Company has designed and programmed the full range of contemporary student communities 
including modern-day residence halls (traditional and full-service), various styles of apartments, 
and mid- and high-rise communities. 

 
Each student housing development project that the Company develops has a dedicated ACC 
construction manager assigned to it responsible for scheduling periodic on-site visits to the 
construction site and general contractor, as well as for regular meetings with the University and 
general contractor.   
 
According to ACC’s management, ACC has never missed a Fall occupancy or exceeded an 
approved development budget on any student housing project it has developed.  See 
www.americancampus.com for more additional information. 

 
ISU’s RFP: ISU engaged the Collegiate Housing Foundation pursuant to a Request for Proposal process to 

develop the subject facility in Spring 2010.  The Collegiate Housing Foundation, in turn, engaged 
American Campus Communities to arrange for the design, financing, and construction. 

 
ISU Campus 
Housing as  
Property Mgr.: Illinois State University will manage day-to-day operations at the property and will provide 

residential life services to residents.  Additionally, ISU will enter into a Ground Lease with CHF-
Normal, L.L.C. and receive surplus cash flows after the payment of operating expenses, debt 
service, and the funding of the Replacement Reserve.  Ownership of the Project will be transferred 
to ISU at the earlier date of expiration of the Ground Lease or upon repayment of the Bonds. 

  

PROJECT SUMMARY (for Final Bond Resolution) 
 

Bond proceeds will be used by CHF-Normal, L.L.C. to (i) finance substantially all of the cost of the acquisition, 
construction, furnishing, and equipping of an approximate 896-bed student housing facility consisting of five (5) 
four-story residential buildings, with a community center, parking lots and related facilities, including the costs of 
demolition of the existing building on a site at Illinois State University in Normal, Illinois (the “Project”), (ii) fund 
interest on the Bonds during the period of construction of the Project and up to six months thereafter, (iii) fund a 
debt service reserve fund for the benefit of the Bonds, and (iv) pay expenses incurred in connection with the 
issuance of the Bonds.   
 
Estimated project costs are as follows: 

Construction costs  $42,000,000 
Machinery/Equipment  3,000,000 
Architectural & Engineering  1,500,000 
Total New Money Project Costs                   $46,500,000 



CHF-Normal, L.L.C.    Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                            January 18, 2011 
Page 7                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
 

 
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

 
Applicant: CHF-Normal, L.L.C. (c/o Mr. Leeman Covey, Collegiate Housing Foundation, 411 Johnson Ave., 

Suite B, P.O. Box 1385, Fairhope, AL  36533-1385; Ph.: 251-928-9340;  
e-mail:  lcovey@collegiatehousing.org ) 

Applicant 
Website: www.collegiatehousing.org 
 
 Project name: To be determined 
Location: 700 Gregory Street, Normal (McLean County), IL 61790 
 
Organization: Alabama Limited Liability Company (June 2010) 
 
Member: Collegiate Housing Foundation:  100% 

 Board of Trustees 
o Mr. Leeman H. Covey, President (former VP of Finance, Springhill College, 

Mobile, AL) 
o Mr. John B. Hicks, Vice President (former Secretary of the Board of Trustees of 

the University of Alabama System) 
o Dr. John Brooks Slaughter, Treasurer 
o The Honorable Jack Edwards, Secretary 
o Mr. Thomas M. Daly, Director 
o Ms. Linda Flaherty-Goldsmith, Director 

 
Current 
Property 
Owner: The subject property will be ground leased from Illinois State University 
 
Project 
Developer: ACC SC Development LLC is a Delaware limited liability company that is an indirect wholly  
 owned subsidiary of American Campus Communities, Inc. (a publicly traded company:  the NYSE  
 Ticker Symbol is “ACC”). 
 
 Shareholders of 5.0% or more (SEC ownership threshold) of ACC as disclosed pursuant to SEC  
 disclosure as of 9/30/2010) included:  (1) The Vanguard Group, Inc. (9.57%) and (2) Davis  
 Selected Advisers, LP (6.12%). 



CHF-Normal, L.L.C.    Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                            January 18, 2011 
Page 8                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 
Borrower: Collegiate Housing Foundation Fairhope, AL 
Auditor: To be determined 
Borrower’s Counsel: William B. Givhan, Esq. Mobile, AL William B. Givhan 
Developer: ACC SC Development LLC 
  (American Campus Communities, 
     Inc.)  Austin, TX Brian Winger 
Developer’s Counsel: Glast, Phillips & Murray, P.C. Dallas, TX Craig Warner 
Underwriter: RBC Capital Markets, LLC Baltimore, MD Michael R. Baird, 
     Sara Russell 
Underwriter’s Counsel: Ballard Spahr LLP Baltimore, MD Teri Guarnaccia 
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL Andrea G. Bacon  
Bond Trustee: Regions Bank Birmingham, AL Lyn Cone 
Bond Trustee’s Counsel: Tanner and Guin, LLC Tuscaloosa, AL J. Marland Hayes 
Financial Advisor to ISU:  John S. Vincent & Co. LLC Chicago, IL John S. Vincent 
Rating Agencies: Moody’s  New York, NY Carlos Calderon 
  Standard & Poor’s Dallas, TX Biana Gaytan-Burrell 
General Contractor: Weis Builders Chicago, IL 
IFA Counsel: Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP Chicago, IL Chuck Katz 
IFA Financial Advisor: Acacia Financial Group Chicago, IL Courtney Shea 
  

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
  

Congressional:    11   Adam Kinzinger            
State Senate:    53   Shane Cultra  
State House: 106   Keith P. Sommer 
 
 
 



 
 

January 18, 2011 

 CONDUIT
 
$135,000,000 
CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. 

 
Purpose: Bond proceeds will be used by CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. (“CHF” or the “Borrower”) to finance (i) the 
acquisition, construction, furnishing, and equipping of an approximate 1,008-bed student housing facility consisting 
of two five-story residential buildings and a community center and dining hall building, with related facilities (the 
“Project) located on Northern Illinois University’s (“NIU’s” or “University’s”) campus in DeKalb, Illinois, (ii) the 
acquisition of an existing housing facility through refunding the Illinois Finance Authority’s Series 2006A Student 
Housing Revenue Bond (CHF-DeKalb, L.L.C. Project at Northern Illinois University), currently outstanding in the 
amount of $18,825,000 (the “Prior Bonds”), (iii) fund capitalized interest on the Bonds, and (iv) fund a debt service 
reserve fund, and (v) pay bond issuance costs.   
 
The Project will be owned by CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C, an affiliate of Collegiate Housing Foundation, a 501(c)(3) 
corporation based in Fairhope, AL.  The Project is located on land leased from the Board of Trustees of the 
University.   The Project will be developed and constructed by an affiliate of American Campus Communities of 
Austin, TX.  Day-to-day operations will be managed by the University.  Additionally, if the Series 2006A Bonds are 
refunded, the Borrower (CHF-DeKalb II, LLC) would be the assignee of CHF-DeKalb, LLC. 
 
Program: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  
Extraordinary Conditions:  None.  

REQUEST 

No IFA Funds at risk.  No State Funds at risk.  

Final Bond Resolution BOARD ACTION 

Voting Record –  Preliminary Bond Resolution 12/14/2010:   
Ayes: 10; Nays: 0; Abstentions: 0; Absent: 5 (DeNard, Durburg, Fuentes, McInerney, Parish); Vacancies: 0 

MATERIAL CHANGES Request Approval of Policy Exception:  Because the proposed project is being developed on behalf of a State 
University, it is recommended that Bonds may be sold in $5,000 denominations provided that the Bonds attain 
minimum ratings of Baa3/BBB-/BBB- from Moody’s/S&P/Fitch (i.e., this would be an exception to IFA’s standard 
minimum debt rating requirement of Baa2/BBB/BBB for Bonds sold in denominations of less than $100,000 
pursuant to IFA’s Bond Program Handbook).   

JOBS DATA 170 Current jobs 6-8 New jobs projected 

  170 Retained jobs  150 
(16-18  months) 

Construction jobs projected 

BORROWER DESCRIPTION ● Type of entity:  CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. is an Alabama limited liability company formed in June 2010 for the 
purpose of assisting NIU to provide housing for its students. (CHF was selected pursuant to a Request-For-Proposal 
issued by NIU to construct and finance this project.) 

 ● Location:  DeKalb/DeKalb/Northeast 

CREDIT INDICATORS 
 

● The Bonds will be sold based on a direct rating of the project.  The Underwriter anticipates a low investment grade 
rating on the Bonds anticipated at Baa3/BBB- from Moody’s/S&P. 
● The Bonds will be sold on the basis of the underlying direct rating only and will not be an obligation of Northern 
Illinois University. 

STRUCTURE ● Publicly offered tax-exempt, fixed rate bonds with a term of not-to-exceed 33 years for the new Project.  Any 
refunded Bonds would likely retain their existing final maturity date (i.e., up to 2043). 
● Security for the Bonds will be determined based on the structure, as described further on pp. 3-5 of this report.  
● NIU will enter into a First Fill Agreement whereby it will manage its on-campus housing stock to ensure that the 
Project achieves a 95% academic year occupancy rate, by directing students to the Project prior to filling other NIU 
campus housing facilities.   
● Debt service on the Bonds will be payable from and secured by Pledged Revenues, which will include student 
rental payments and payments made by the Auxiliary Facilities System under the dining facility lease. 

SOURCES AND USES IFA Bonds               $110,735,000 Project Cost:          $128,000,000 

 
IFA Ref. 
Bonds 18,825,000 Costs of Issuance         2,000,000 

 Equity                     440,000   

  Total             $130,000,000 Total                      $130,000,000  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval including the policy exception noted above.  



CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C.                                                                                     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                         January 18, 2011 
Page 2                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BOARD SUMMARY 
January 18, 2011 

 
Project: CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. 
 

STATISTICS 
 
IFA Project: N-NP-TE-CD-8435   Amount: $135,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount) 
Type:  501(c)(3) Bonds    IFA Staff: Rich Frampton 
Location: DeKalb      County/   
        Region: DeKalb / Northeast   
 

BOARD ACTION 
Final Bond Resolution   
Conduit 501(c)(3) Student Housing Revenue Bonds   
Credit committee recommends approval.  No IFA funds at risk 
 
Policy Exception:  Given that the proposed project is being developed on behalf of a State University, Bonds would 
be sold in minimum denominations of $5,000 subject to receiving minimum ratings of Baa3/BBB-/BBB- from 
Moody’s/S&P/Fitch (as applicable).  These minimum ratings are being recommended, as an exception to the 
standard minimum rating requirement of Baa2/BBB/BBB applicable to Bonds sold in denominations of less than 
$100,000 under IFA’s Bond Program Handbook, in order to reduce the market interest rate on this Project.  
 
Additionally, it is contemplated that this Policy Exception will be recommended as part of IFA’s standard Bond 
Program Handbook policy in the future. 
 

VOTING RECORD 
 
Preliminary Bond Resolution – December 14, 2010: 
 
Ayes: 10; Nays: 0; Abstentions: 0; Absent: 5 (DeNard, Durburg, Fuentes, McInerney, Parish); Vacancies: 0 
 

PURPOSE 
 
Bond proceeds will be used by CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. (the “Borrower”) to finance the design, development, 
construction and equipping of a new campus housing facility consisting of  approximately 1,008 student housing 
beds located, dining facilities, and a community center on Northern Illinois University’s (“NIU’s”) campus in 
DeKalb, Illinois, to pay capitalized interest during construction, capitalize a debt service reserve fund, and pay bond 
issuance costs.  NIU is developing this facility specifically to provide student housing for freshman students. 
 
Additionally, Bond proceeds will be used to acquire an existing housing facility by refunding IFA Series 2006A 
Student Housing Revenue Bonds (CHF-DeKalb, L.L.C.), currently outstanding with a balance of approximately 
$18,825,000 (the “Prior Bonds”). 
 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 
 
501(c)(3) Bonds are municipal bonds authorized under the Internal Revenue Code that enable 501(c)(3) corporations 
to finance capital projects furthering support of their mission.  The IFA’s issuance of these Bonds will convey 
federal tax-exempt status on interest paid to bondholders, thereby enabling bondholders to accept a below market 
interest rate that is passed through to the borrower.   



CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C.     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                         January 18, 2011 
Page 3                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
 

VOLUME CAP 
 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 
 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS – Preliminary, Subject to Change 
 
Sources: IFA Bonds (IRB) 110,735,000$      Uses: Project Costs 90,175,000$       

IFA Refunding Bonds 18,825,000          
Refunding Series 2006A Bonds - 
CHF DeKalb I, LLC 18,825,000         

Equity 440,000               Capitalized Interest 11,000,000         
Debt Service Reserve Fund 8,000,000           
Costs of Issuance 2,000,000           

Total:               130,000,000$      Total: 130,000,000$     

 
Note:  The amounts represented are preliminary estimates and are subject to change.    The Capitalized Interest Fund 
will be established at an amount sufficient to fund interest expense to 4/1/2013 (i.e., enable interest to be funded for 
a period of 6 months beyond the anticipated completion date, as customary).  The Debt Service Reserve Fund will 
be capitalized at an amount sufficient to cover a minimum of one year’s maximum annual debt service payments.   
 

JOBS 
 
Current employment: 175 Projected new jobs: 5-8 
Jobs retained: 175 Construction jobs:  150 (16-18  
      months) 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY 
 

Bondholder’s 
Security/ 
Credit Ratings: The Borrower and RBC Capital Markets LLC contemplate obtaining a direct rating on the Bonds 

for sale to investors.  It is presently contemplated that the Bonds will have an underlying rating of 
Baa3/BBB- from Moody’s/Standard and Poor’s (see Policy Exception requested under “Material 
Changes” heading on p. 1 of this report). 
 
Under this “direct rating” structure, security for the Bonds will include Revenues collected by the 
University on behalf of the Borrower and deposited with the Trustee and funds and accounts held 
under the Trust Indenture including (a Construction Fund and Debt Service Fund/Capitalized 
Interest Account during the construction phase), Debt Service Reserve Fund and Repair and 
Replacement Fund.  The Debt Service Reserve Fund will be fully funded at closing in an amount 
equal to maximum annual debt service on the Bonds.  Additionally, a Repair and Replacement 
Fund will be capitalized on an annual basis from project cash flows in an initial amount of $175 
per bed per year. 

 
 As proposed, the Borrower would be required to execute the following documents:  (1) a Security 

Agreement, encumbering Project Revenues, equipment and inventory; (2) a Leasehold Mortgage 
and Assignment of Rents and Leases, encumbering all of the Borrower’s rights, title and interest in 
and to the land and improvements; and (3) an Assignment of Contract Documents, assigning the 
Borrower’s interest in the development agreement, construction contact and other related 
agreements. 



CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C.     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                         January 18, 2011 
Page 4                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
 
Special  
Structuring 
Feature: NIU First Fill Agreement:  NIU will enter into a First Fill Agreement for the Project, under 

which it will fill this Project prior to other university-owned or affiliated housing.  (Note:  the 
CHF Normal project at ISU does not provide this structuring feature.) 

 
Limited 
Obligations: The Bonds will be limited obligations of CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C., the Illinois Finance Authority, 

the State of Illinois, and Northern Illinois University, and will be payable only from revenues of 
the Project and secured by (i) a Leasehold Mortgage on the land and improvements, (ii) a 
collateral assignment of Rents and Leases, and (iii) a Security Agreement.  Pursuant to terms of 
the Ground Lease, CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. will be subject to a rate covenant to revise rates, fees, 
and charges as necessary so that Revenue Available for Fixed Charges will be sufficient to meet 
the requirements of the Loan Agreement.  

 
 Bonds will be 
Non-Recourse 
to NIU, IFA, 
and the State of  
Illinois: The Bonds will not constitute a debt of Northern Illinois University, IFA, the State of Illinois, or 

any other political subdivision of the State and payment of the Bonds (and any interest thereon) 
will not be supported by the taxing powers, full faith and credit, or a moral obligation of the State 
of Illinois or any political subdivision. 

 
Underlying 
Project Ratings: The Bonds are anticipated to have an underlying rating of Baa3/BBB- from Moody’s and Standard 

and Poor’s, respectively.   
 
Structure/ 
Interest Rate: The expectation is that the Bonds would obtain a low investment grade rating (e.g., Baa3/BBB-) 

and sold on a fixed rate basis.  Interest rates will be based on market conditions at the time of 
closing. 

 
  Interest will be fully capitalized through February 1, 2013 (i.e., a date six months subsequent the 

anticipated substantial completion date of the Project).   
 

Maturity: 33 years (not-to-exceed) 
 
Estimated 
Closing Date: February, 2011 
 



CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C.     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                         January 18, 2011 
Page 5                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
 
Rationale:  The proposed financing will provide for the construction of approximately 1,008 beds of new and 

replacement student housing on the campus of Northern Illinois University on the site of a former 
NIU-owned apartment complex.  The project will provide an affordable, on-campus housing 
option for NIU’s students and will have a positive impact on the surrounding community by 
enhancing the University’s ability to attract and retain students, which in turn provides economic 
activity in the area.  In the short-term, the project will provide a source of construction jobs. 

 
Northern Illinois University’s Campus Housing Division will actively manage day-to-day 
operations at the property and will provide residential life services to residents.  Additionally, NIU 
will enter into a Ground Lease with CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. and receive surplus cash flows after 
the payment of operating expenses, debt service, and the funding of the Replacement Reserve.  
The project will revert back to NIU at the end of the Ground Lease or upon full repayment of the 
Bonds. 
 

  NIU issued a Request for Proposal in Spring 2010 for a third party developer to finance and 
construct university student housing facilities according to NIU design specifications.  The 
proposed financing will enable NIU to complete financing and construction of these student 
housing facilities without issuing its own debt. 

 
  Additionally, the proposed refunding Bonds (that would refund IFA Series 2006A Bonds – CHF-

DeKalb, L.L.C. Project) would enable CHF and the University to eliminate variable rate interest 
risk and LOC-renewal risk if deemed necessary or desirable. 

 
BUSINESS SUMMARY 

 
Background: CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. (the “LLC” or the “Borrower”) is an Alabama Limited Liability 

Company formed in June 2010 for the sole purpose of assisting Northern Illinois University 
(“NIU” or the “University”) to provide housing for its students. 

  
 The sole Member of the Borrower is the Collegiate Housing Foundation (the “Foundation”), an 

Alabama not-for-profit corporation established in 1996.  The Foundation received its 501(c)(3) 
Determination Letter from the IRS in 1997. 

 
 The Foundation is governed by a 6-member Board of Trustee (see Economic Disclosure Statement 

section on pages 7-8 for further information). 
  
Description 
of the  
Member:  The Collegiate Housing Foundation’s mission is to assist college and universities by financing, 

owning, and operating student housing facilities on or near their campuses. 
 
 Since its founding, the Foundation and its affiliates have acquired, financed, and managed 33 

privatized student housing projects in 19 states, with aggregate project development costs of over 
$700 million. 

 
 The Collegiate Housing Foundation develops each project as a stand-alone project financing.  

CHF forms a special purpose entity to serve as the Borrower and Owner of the subject student 
housing facilities to be developed.  The sponsoring college/university benefits since the project 
can potentially be financed on a revenue basis by prospective users. 

 
 As proposed, CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. will lease the ground for the underlying project from NIU.  

The Facility will be financed with proceeds of a tax-exempt bond issue and will be mortgaged (via 
a Leasehold Mortgage) as security for the Bondholders.  Upon completion, NIU’s Housing 
Division will manage day-to-day operations (and will covenant to lease the subject facilities first, 



CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C.     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                         January 18, 2011 
Page 6                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
under a “First Fill Agreement”, prior to filling other NIU-owned or affiliated housing).  When the 
proposed Bonds are paid in full, the mortgage will be cancelled and the Foundation’s interest in 
the facility will be conveyed (i.e., donated) to Northern Illinois University. 

 
Prior IFA and  
NIU Experience 
with CHF: In 2006, IFA issued $19.38 million of 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds for CHF-DeKalb, L.L.C., a 

special purpose entity that was formed by Collegiate Housing Foundation pursuant to an NIU 
request for proposal to develop, construct, and finance a 120-unit replacement student apartment 
facility on NIU’s campus.   The IFA Series 2006 Bonds for CHF-DeKalb, L.L.C. are secured by a 
Direct Pay Letter of Credit from Sovereign Bank/Banco Santander.  All payments have been 
current.  NIU also engaged the Foundation to develop this privatized student housing project in 
2006 pursuant to a Request for Proposal.  (The subject project represents NIU’s second 
engagement of CHF to develop a student housing facility on a site ground leased from NIU.)   

 
 As proposed, the outstanding balance of these Bonds would be refinanced as part of the proposed 

financing.   
  
Description 
of the 
Developer: American Campus Communities (“ACC” or the “Company”) was founded in 1993, is based in 

Austin, TX, and has been publicly traded Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) on the New York 
Stock Exchange (NYSE Ticker:  ACC) since 2004.  ACC focuses on developing and owning 
student housing as its sole, core business.  ACC SC Development, LLC (the “Developer”) a 
Delaware Limited Liability company, is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary that is responsible 
for all third party development activities undertaken by ACC. 

 
Since 1996, ACC has developed more than $1.6 billion in properties for its own account and its 
university clients and has acquired in excess of $650 million in student housing assets.  ACC has 
developed 64 privatized student housing communities, consisting of more than 47,000 beds.  The 
Company has designed and programmed the full range of contemporary student communities 
including modern-day residence halls (traditional and full-service), various styles of apartments, 
and mid- and high-rise communities. 

 
Each student housing development project that the Company develops has a dedicated ACC 
construction manager assigned to it responsible for scheduling periodic on-site visits to the 
construction site, as well as for regular meetings with the University and general contractor.   
 
According to ACC’s management, ACC has never missed a Fall occupancy or exceeded an 
approved development budget on any student housing project it has developed.  See 
www.americancampus.com for more additional information. 
 

NIU’s RFP: NIU engaged the Collegiate Housing Foundation (the Borrower) pursuant to a Request for 
Proposal process to develop the subject facility.  The Collegiate Housing Foundation, in turn, 
engaged American Campus Communities to arrange for the design, financing, and construction. 

 



CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C.     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                         January 18, 2011 
Page 7                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
 
NIU  
Campus 
Housing as 
Property  
Manager:  NIU’s Campus Housing Division will manage day-to-day operations at the property and will 

provide residential life services to residents.  Additionally, NIU will enter into a Ground Lease 
with CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. and receive surplus cash flows after the payment of operating 
expenses, debt service, and the funding of the Replacement Reserve.  Ownership of the Project 
will be transferred to NIU at the earlier date of expiration of the Ground Lease or upon repayment 
of the Bonds. 

  

PROJECT SUMMARY (for Final Bond Resolution) 
 

Pursuant to the Ground Lease agreement between Northern Illinois University and Collegiate Housing Foundation, 
Bond Proceeds will be issued in one or more series and used to (i) finance the design, development, construction and 
equipping of an approximately 1,008-bed student housing facility comprising two, 5-story buildings, near the 
northwest corner of Annie Glidden Road and Lincoln Drive North on ground leased from Northern Illinois 
University’s campus in DeKalb, Illinois 60115.  Bond proceeds will also finance (ii) the design, construction and 
equipping of a dining hall facility, and community center, (iii) finance capitalized interest during the construction 
period, (iv) capitalize a debt service reserve fund, and (v) pay bond issuance costs (and, collectively the “Project”).  
Finally, additional series of Bonds may also be issued to acquire an existing student housing facility by refunding 
the outstanding balance of IFA Series 2006A Bonds [i.e., CHF-DeKalb, L.L.C. Project at Northern Illinois 
University] (the “Prior Bonds”).   
 
The Project financed by the New Money Series 2011 Bond Proceeds will be owned by CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C., an 
affiliate of Collegiate Housing Services, a 501(c)(3) corporation, and developed and constructed by American 
Campus Communities.  Day-to-day operations will be managed by NIU. 
 
Estimated project costs are as follows (preliminary, subject to change): 
 

Construction costs – Housing Facilities  $62,750,000 
Construction costs – Dining Facilities and 
   Community Center  8,250,000 
Machinery & Equipment  6,000,000 
Architectural & Engineering  1,495,000 
Telecommunications, surveys, testing, permits, 
   Impact fees, constr. mgmt. fees  3,240,000 
Construction Contingency  4,000,000 
Market Study Fees, Title, Development Fees, 
   Soft Cost Contingency, Other Legal/Prof.  4,440,000 
Total New Money Project Costs                   $90,175,000 

 
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

 
Applicant: CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C. (c/o Mr. Leeman Covey, Collegiate Housing Foundation, 411 Johnson 

Ave., Suite B, P.O. Box 1385, Fairhope, AL  36533-1385; Ph.: 251-928-9340; e-mail:  
lcovey@collegiatehousing.org ) 

Applicant 
Website: www.collegiatehousing.org 
 Project name: To be determined 
Location: The Project will be on the campus of the University, generally near the intersection of Annie 

Glidden Road and Lincoln Drive North, DeKalb, Illinois 60115.   
 



CHF-DeKalb II, L.L.C.     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                         January 18, 2011 
Page 8                                                                                                                                                                             Rich Frampton 

 
Organization: Alabama Limited Liability Company (June 2010) 
Member: Collegiate Housing Foundation:  100% 

 Board of Trustees 
o Mr. Leeman H. Covey, President (former VP of Finance, Springhill College, 

Mobile, AL) 
o Mr. John B. Hicks, Vice President (former Secretary of the Board of Trustees of 

the University of Alabama System) 
o Dr. John Brooks Slaughter, Treasurer 
o The Honorable Jack Edwards, Secretary 
o Mr. Thomas M. Daly, Director 
o Ms. Linda Flaherty-Goldsmith, Director 

 
Current 
Property 
Owner: The subject property will be located on ground leased from Northern Illinois University.  NIU will  
 also be the Manager of the Project upon completion. 
 
Project 
Developer: ACC SC Development LLC is a Delaware limited liability company that is an indirect wholly  
 owned subsidiary of American Campus Communities, Inc. (a publicly traded company:  the NYSE  
 Ticker Symbol is “ACC”). 
 
 Shareholders of 5.0% or more (SEC ownership threshold) of ACC as disclosed pursuant to SEC  
 disclosure (as of 9/30/2010) included:  (1) The Vanguard Group, Inc. (9.57%) and (2) Davis  
 Selected Advisers, LP (6.12%). 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 
Borrower: Collegiate Housing Foundation Fairhope, AL 
University’s Counsel: Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP Chicago, IL Howard Zweig 
Auditor: To be determined 
Borrower’s Counsel: William B. Givhan, Esq. Mobile, AL William B. Givhan 
Developer: ACC SC Development LLC 
  (American Campus Communities, 
     Inc.)  Austin, TX Brian Winger 
Developer’s Counsel: Glast, Phillips & Murray, P.C. Dallas, TX Craig Warner 
Underwriter: RBC Capital Markets, LLC Baltimore, MD Michael R. Baird, 
     Sara Russell 
Underwriter’s Counsel: Ballard Spahr LLP Baltimore, MD Teri Guarnaccia 
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL Andrea G. Bacon  
Bond Trustee: Regions Bank Birmingham, AL Lyn Cone 
Bond Trustee’s Counsel: Tanner and Guin, LLC Tuscaloosa, AL J. Marland Hayes 
Financial Advisor to NIU:  Longhouse Capital Advisors LaGrange Park, IL Michael Boisvert 
Rating Agencies: Moody’s  New York, NY Carlos Calderon 
  Standard & Poor’s Dallas, TX Biana Gaytan-Burrell 
General Contractor: Pepper Construction Co. Chicago, IL 
IFA Counsel: Drinker Biddle LLP Chicago, IL Chuck Katz 
IFA Financial Advisor: Acacia Financial Group Chicago, IL Courtney Shea 
 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
  

Congressional:  14    Randy Hultgren            
State Senate:  35   J. Bradley Burzynski  
State House: 70    Robert Pritchard 
 



  DRAFT 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO: Illinois Finance Authority (“IFA”) Board of Directors 
FROM: Jim Senica, Senior Funding Manager 
DATE: January 18, 2011 
RE: Pere` Marquette Hotel Associates, L.P. Participation Loan Update 
 
 Loan No. B-LL-TX-582  Original  Note Date:   08/08/06 
                        Original Balance:   $990,950.73 
     Original Interest Rate: 1.014% 
       Maturity Date: 1/31/11 
                        Balance @ 6/30/10 $813,132.28 
     Interest Rate beginning 
        as of July 2010: 6.250% 
 
 
Background: This IFA Participation Loan was originally closed August 2006 with an original 
maturity date of March 31, 2010.  The IFA Board previously approved requests to extend the 
final maturity date: (1) Initially to June 30, 2010 (approved May 11, 2010), (2) subsequently to 
September 30, 2010 (approved July 13, 2010) and (3) subsequently to January 31, 2011 
(approved October 12, 2010). 
 
Proposed Hotel Sale would repay existing lenders: The Hotel’s current owners, Pere` 
Marquette Hotel Associates, L.P. are in the process of selling the facility and are awaiting receipt 
of loan proceeds from the closing of the sale to a new purchaser, EM Properties of East Peoria, 
in order to repay this loan in full.  The new owner’s project entails not only the purchase of the 
Pere` Marquette Hotel, but also includes complete refurbishing of the hotel facility transforming 
it into a 4-star Marriott hotel, along with construction of a new Marriott Courtyard Hotel.  
Additionally, the project involved construction of a parking facility adjacent to the current hotel 
building and an enclosed walkway linking both hotels to the Peoria Civic Center.   Securing 
financing for a project of this complexity and magnitude during the current recession has been 
challenging for the purchaser, thus necessitating repeated extensions of the final maturity date of 
IFA’s loan.   
 
Request:  Under the IFA Participation Loan Program, it is the contractual obligation of the 
participating bank, not the IFA, to administer the loan and service the loan, including remitting 
and forwarding payments to IFA, as well as regular servicing calls to monitor collateral, 
collecting and reviewing financial statements and managing loan work-outs and asset disposition 
as necessary.  



Pere` Marquette Hotel Associates, L.P.                              DRAFT               
Page 2 

 
Recommendation:  Because this loan is currently in negotiation by PNC Bank (and the multi-
bank financing syndicate) and the underlying situation could materially change at any time, IFA 
staff recommends that the Board authorize the Executive Director, or a designee of the Executive 
Director, to undertake reasonable actions necessary to protect the Authority’s interest in this loan 
with update reports presented to the IFA Board of Directors on an as-needed basis. 
 
Additionally, IFA staff recommends that the Board authorize extending the final maturity date 
by an additional 120 days (i.e., to May 31, 2010). 



RESOLUTION NO. 2010-0118-AD05 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING AN INDENTURE EVIDENCING A 
CONDUIT DEBT ISSUANCE BY THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 
AUTHORITY FOR THE MCKINLEY FOUNDATION PROJECT, AND 
RATIFYING CERTAIN ACTIONS RELATING THERETO 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) is a body corporate 

and politic duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois, particularly 
the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et seq. (the ‘Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., is a national banking association duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America and qualified to 
accept and administer the trust created by the Agreement (the “Trustee”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority and the Trustee have heretofore entered into an 

Indenture dated as of October 1, 2007 (the “Original Indenture”), related to the issuance 
by the Authority of its $21,745,000 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (The 
McKinley Foundation Project), Series 2007A (the “Bonds”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the remarketing of the Bonds, it is proposed 
that the parties enter into a First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 2010 
(the “First Supplemental Indenture” and together with the Original Indenture, 
collectively, the “Indenture”) deleting the Unit Pricing Mode;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 
AUTHORITY THAT the Original Indenture is hereby amended pursuant to the First 
Supplemental Indenture; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Executive Director of the Authority 
(and any designee of such Executive Director) are authorized, empowered and directed to 
do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents and certificates as may be 
necessary to further the purposes and intent of this Resolution, including but not limited 
to, any additional amendments or supplements to the Indenture or related documents 
necessary to effect the remarketing of the Bonds as Bank Qualified Bonds within the 
meaning of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); and 



 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all such actions heretofore taken by the 
Executive Director (or any designee of such Executive Director) in furtherance of the 
purposes of this Resolution, whether upon oral or written direction of the Authority, are 
hereby ratified; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Resolution shall be effective 
immediately upon adoption. 
 
 Dated this Eighteenth day of January 2011. 
 
Ayes: 
 
Nays: 
 
Abstain: 
 
Vacant: 
 
 
 
       ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
       By:___________________________ 
         Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:_________________________ 
  Secretary 
 
[SEAL] 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 6 – Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to work with various 
agencies and trade groups to provide comments to Securities Exchange 

Commission on proposed SEC Rules  
To be Distributed at Committee of the Whole Meeting 


	Tab 0 - BDAG 01 18 11
	Tab X - BDAG 01 18 11
	Tab Y - BDAG 01 18 11

	Tab A - Executive Director Msg
	Tab A0.1 - FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE BOARD
	Tab A0.2 - consolidate fin for board book
	Tab A0.3 - Audit Findings-Tracking w 2 tabs 2 pages total
	Tab A0.4 - Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year 123110
	Tab A0.5 - Schedule of Debt by Market Sector
	Tab A0.6 - ExecDirMsgandInserts
	Tab B & C Approved Minutes 12.14.10 
	Minutes of COW 12.14.10
	Minutes of Board Meeting 12.14.10

	Tab 1 - Beginning Farmer Bond Summary 01 18 11
	Tab 2 - CHF-Normal-ISU FBR 2011-01 _v3_
	Tab 3 - CHF-DeKalb II-NIU FBR 2010-01 _v3_
	Tab 4 - Pere` Marquette Hotel Loan Update - 2011-01-18 FINAL V2
	Tab 5 - McKinley Foundation Resolution - January v3
	Tab 6 - SEC Rules Placeholder



